STATEMENY OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 28, 2021

Securities and Exchange Commission
Secretariat Building, PICC Complex
Roxas Boulevard, Metro Manila Philippines

The management of GMA Network, ine. and Subsidiaries is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements including the schedules attached therein, as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, in
accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal
contral as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends {o liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do =o.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements including the
schedules attached therein and submits the same to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders has audited the
consaolidated financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing,

and in its report to the stockhoiders, has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon
completion of such audit.

FELIPE L. GOZON
Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer

e

Executive Vice Hresident.»
Chief Financial Officer

APR 08 2021
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ____ day of at , affiants

exhibited to me their (Felipe L. Gozon) TIN 108-174-605, (Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.) TN 158-147-748 and
(Felipe 8. Yalong) TIN 102-874-052. .
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VER SHEET

for
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS

SEC Megistration Number

COMPANY NAME
GIMA NIETIWO RK], PINICT. AIN|D SIUIBIS| DI [A

RITIES

PRIMNCIBAL GEFICE (No / Stree!/ Baranpay / City / Town / Province |
G M| A Niel¢t|wiolrlk Cle/n|tielr], Tli|lmielg Alvieln

vie clo|rinlelr EIDIS|Al, |Qlujelz]loin Cliltly

Foma Type Department eowining the repord Saecondary License Type, If Applicable

Alc|rls CMD l | ot Applicablc

COMPANY INFORMATION

Corapany's Email Address Company's Telephons Number Mobite Number
Not applicable 8982-7777 Neot applicable
Mo, of Steckholders Arnual Meeting {Month 1 Day) Fiscal Year (Month / Day)
1,060 519 12/33

CONTACT PERSONM INFORMATION

The designated contact persen MUST be an Officer of the Corporation

Name of Contact Person Email Address Telephone Number/s Mobite Mumber

Felipe S. Yalong FSY@gmaneiwork.com 8928-5133 Net applicable

CONTACT PERSON's ADDRESS |

GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA, Guezon City

NOTE 1: Incase of death, resignation or cessation of office of the officer designated as contact person, such incident shall be reported to the Commission within
thirty (30} calendar days from the occurence thereof with information and complete contact detalls of the new confact person designated.

2 Al Boxes must be propery and completely filled-up. Failure to do so shall cause the delay in updating the corporation's records with the Commission
andfor non-receipt of Nofice of Deficiencies. Furiher, non-receipt of Motice of Deficienciss shall not excuse the corpuration from liability for its deficiencies.
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rovemiser 5 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GMA Netwaork, Inc. and Subsidiaries '
GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue corner EDSA

(uezon City

Opinicn

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020
and 2019, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes
in equity and consolidated statements ol cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompany ing consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for cach of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Phifippine Standards on Auditing {PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Phitippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consofidated financial
statements in the Phifippines, and we have fulfitled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the conselidated financial statemenis as a whole, and in forming our epinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audii addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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We have fulfitled the responsibilities described in the duditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consoliduted Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financiat statements, The resuits of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed fo address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statentents.

{{) Revenue Recognition

The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue from advertising, which represents 92% of the
consolidated revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020. Proper recognition of revenue from
advertising is significant to ocur audit given the farge volume of transactions processed daily and the
highly automated aistime revenug process with multiple information technology (iT) interfaces from
initiation to reporting. Further, there are different rates applicable depending on the time slot when the
advertisements arc aired which are adjusted by discounts granted by the Group on a case-by-case basis as
indicated in the telecast orders. Lastly, there are variations in the timing of biliings which are made
depending on whesn the advertisements are aired,

Refer to Note 21 of the consolidated financial statements for the disclosure on details about the Group’s
revenues.

Auclit Response

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s advertising revenue process, tested the relevant internal
controls and involved our internal specialist in testing the revenue-related I'T controls. In addition, we
selected samples of billing statements and performed re-computation. This was done by comparing the
rates applied tothe billing statements against the rates on the telecast orders and the billable airtime
against the certificales of performance generated when the advertisements were aired. We also tested
transactions taking place one month before and after year-end to check the timing of the recognition of
the sample advertising revenues.

(2) Adeguacy of Allowance for Expected Credit Losses on Trade Receivabies

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating expected credit losses (ECL) on trade
receivables. Under this approach, the Group establishes a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. Allowance for ECL and the provision for ECL as of and for the year ended December 31,
2020 amounted to #766.52 million and £347 20 million, respectively. The use of ECL model is
significant to our audit as it involves the exercise of significant management judgment. Key areas of
tudgment include: segmenting the Group’s credit risk exposures; defining default; determining
assumptions to be used in the ECL mode! such as timing and amounts of expected net recoveries from
defaulied accounts; and incorperating forward-looking information (calied overlays), including the
impact of the coronavirus pandemic, in caleulating ECL. '

Refer to Note 7 of the consolidated financial statements for the disclosure on the details of the allowance
for credit tosses using the ECL model.
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Auddit response

We obtained an understanding of the methodology used for the Group’s trade receivables and assessed
whether this considered the requirements of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments.

We (a) assessed the Group's segmentation of its credit risk exposure based on homogeneity of credit risk
characteristics; (b) tested the definition of default against historical analysis of accounts and credit risk
management policies and practices in place, (¢) tested historical loss rates by inspecting historical
recoveries and write-ofTs; (d) checked the classification of outstanding exposures to their corresponding
aging buckets: and (e) reviewed management’s congideration of forward-looking information, including
the impact of the coronavirus pandemic in the calculation of ECL.

Further, we checked the data used in the ECL model, such as the historical aging analysis and default and
recovery data, by reconciling data from source system reports. We also reconciled sample invoices to the
foss allowance analysis/models and financial reporting systems. To the extent that the loss allowance
analysis is based on credit exposures that have been disaggregated into subsets with similar risk
characteristics, we traced or re-performed the disaggregation from source systems to the loss allowance
analysis. We also assessed the assumptions used where there are missing or insufficient data,

We recalculated impairment provisions on a sample basis.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
inctuded in the SEC Form 20-18 {Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form [7-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2020 but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The SEC Form 20-1S (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2020 are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. :

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to vead the
other nformation identified above when it becomes avaitable and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the conselidated financial statements or cur knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Respensibilities for the Audit of the Convolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboust whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually ot in the
agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
orofessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ervor,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional eimissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s interpal control.

e Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to eveats or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. [f
we conclude that a material uncertainty exisis, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
repolt to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, iF such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of cur auditors™s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e [valuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated tinancial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consclidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those chareed with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit (indings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ail relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so weuld reasonabiy be expected to cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Belinda T. Beng Hui.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Adinde) T. los
Belinda T. Beng Hut

Partner
CPA Certificate No. 88823
SEC Accreditation No. 0943-AR-3 {Group A),
March {4, 2019, valid until March 13, 2022 ,
Tax identification No. 153-978.243
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-078-2020,
December 3, 2020, valid until December 2, 2023
PTR No. 8334224, January 4, 2021, Makati City

March 26, 2021
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Pecember 33

2420 2019
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 30 and 31) $3,214.817.264 P2.254 971,656
Trade and other receivables (Notes 7, 240, 30 and 31) 10,466,537,6958 5257147953
Program and other rights (Note §) 756,736,229 842,413,582
Prepaid expenses and other current assels (Note 9) 2.614,313,30¢6 918901359

Total Current Assets 16,446,406,494 9.273.434,550
NMopeurrent Assets
Property and equipment:

At cost (Note 12) 2,588,113,704 2.695,162.487

At revalued amounts (Notes 13 and 31) 3.803,196,184 2.803.196,184
Right-of-use assets {Note 27) 89,268,276 1209 802,186
Financtal assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

(Notes 10, 30 and 31 192,132,088 243.433.060
tnvestments and advances (Notes 11 and 203 184,524,315 179,766,749
Program and other rights - net of current portion {Note 8) £92,229.776 196,376,347
Investment properties (Notes 14 and 31) 34,865,834 36,252,221
Deferred tax assets - net (Note 28) P,172,710,952 474 417278
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 15, 30 and 313 235,808,847 345,037,507

Fotal Moncurrent Assels 7,492 862,976 7.073,444.189
TOTAL ASSETS £23.939,269.470 P16,346 878,369
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Clurreat Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liahitities (Notes 16, 30 and 31) £2,977 884,927 P2.4006,724.759
Short-term loans (Notes 17, 30 and 313 720,345,000 404,004,000
Income tax payable 1,776.896,733 S12.384,161
Current portion of lease liabilities (Nows 27, 30 and 31) 10,485,295 iR.2068,746
Obligations for program and other rights (Notes 18, 30 and 31) 176,182,128 F33,784.154
Dividends payable (Notes 19, 30 and 31) 19,894,437 18,734,008

Total Current Liabifities 5,681,682.520 3,489 BO5 K28
Noncurrent Liabilities
Pension liability (Note 26} 4,915, 525,689 2,733,593,128
Other long-term employee benefits (Note 26) 349,702,454 336,401,040
§aase Habilities - net of current portion (Notes 27, 30 and 31) 66,370,777 87,510,369
Dismantling provision (Note 27) 44,973,410 42,392,193

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,376,172,330 3,190.905,732

‘Fotal Lizbilifies 11,057,.854,850 6,689 801.560

fForward)
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Deeentber 31

2526

2016

Eqguity
Capital stock (Note 193

£4,864,692,0600

P4,864,692,000

Additional paid-in capital 1,659.635,196 1,659.035,196
Revaluation increment on land - net of tax {Note 13) 1,7HL305,188 1,710,505, 188
Remeasurement loss on retirement plans - net of tax (Nofe 263 {2,396,957.,048) (1,338,518.977)
Net unirealized loss on financial assets at FVOUT - net of tax (Note 10) (47,749,492) (2,245,454}
Retained earnings (Nole 19) 7,253,764,093 2.727.238.685
Treasury stocks (Note 19) (28,483,171 (28483171
Underlving shares of the acquired Philippine Deposit Receipts (Note 19) (5,790,816) (5,790.010)
Tolat equity attributable 6 equity holders of the Parent Company 12,869,056,7580 9,586.,433,436
Non-confrolling interests (Note 2) 72,357,870 70,643,553
Total Kquity 12,881, 414,620 9.637.077,009
TOTAL LIABILITIES ARD ROQUITY £23.939,269476 P16,346,878,509

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Yeurs Ended December 31

2029

2019

2018

REVENUES (Note 21

£19,335,895,534

216,493,452.212

PIS230.192.369

PRODEUCTION COSTS (Note 22) 3,452,138,359 6,435 153,765 6,483,703,064
COST OF SALES (Note 9 479,417,099
GROSS PROMIT 15,40:4,340,080 10,058,298 447 8752 489305
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
(Note 23) 6,847.818,011 6,325.456,794 5,514,342 920
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) - NET
Forgign currency exchange gain (loss) (Note 17} (47,023,770 (34.892.931} 19,22 1.001
Interest expense (Notes 17 and 27) (26,545,123} (35,595,345) (36,251,389
Interest imcome {(Mote 6) 13,715,413 22,906,786 25435860
Fquity in net carnings of joint ventures {Note 11) 3,508,748 13,420,076 6,351,690
Others - net {Note 25} 85,174,767 87.766.560 79,113,895
35,230,027 33,605,152 93 891,057
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 8,591,752.096 3,766.440,805 3332037442
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
(Note 28)
{Turrent 2,728,650,540 1,200,778,143 1.056,853,900
Detersed (144,232,767} (73,607 958) (48,828.615)
2.584,417,773 1,127,170, 185 1008 025,291
NET INCOME 6,007,334,323 2.636.276,620 2,324 012 151
OTHER COMPREHIENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) -
net of tax
Hems not (o be reclassified to profit or loss in !
subsequent periods:
Net changes in (he falr market value of
financial assets al FYOCT (Note 1) {45,464,038) 2,805 891 (23,543,428)
Revatuation increment on land (Note 13) — 693,238,159
Remeasurement logs on retirement plans (Nole 26) {1,261,623,143) (300,697,741 (367,199,765}
(1,307,087, 181) {297.891,850) 302 5149606
TOTAL COMPREMBENSIVE INCOME £4,700,247,142 P2 341 384,770 P2.626,527.117
Met income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company £5,984,584,939 £2.618.460,7006 P2,304,793,288
Non-controtling interests {Note 2) 22,749,384 2815914 19 218,863
£6,007,334,323 B2 639 276,620 B2 324012 151
Total comprehensive income attributable 1o
Equity hobders of the Parent Company £4,680,682,825 2,320,788,743 P2.602,691,528
Non-controfling interests (Note 2 19,504,317 20,596,027 23835789
£4,700,247,142 P2.341 384,770 P2.626,527.117
Bagic / Diluted Farnings Per Share (Note 29) £1,231 £2(),539 £20.474

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalemens.
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GMA NETWORIK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020, 2019 AND 2018

Fyuit Attributable to Eyuity Holders ofthe Parent Cowmpany

Uaderhing
Shares of the
Acgithred

Revaluaiion Losson Loss on

Tucientent o Reliresieni  Finamviad Assets Non-

Land Plans at FYOCT Treasury coutruline

Cupilal Stk - net of fax - net of tax - net of tax Retained Taraings Stocks Receipts Injorests
{Note 19) Capi {Note 133 {Note 26) {Note 10] (Nore 19Y [Nowe 19) {Noie |9 Fotal s ) Totui Eguity
£4,5364,652.000 1659035096 $1.710,505,188  (£1,338,318,977) (B2 245454)  P27IT2IBR8F (F28483.171) (BR,790.016)  #9,586.433,456 PT74,643,555 P63 T0TT 008

- - - - - 3,984,384,939 - - 3,98:4,584,439 22,749,384

- - - {1.258,438,0761 {45.:464,038) - - - (1,303,002, 043 3,183,007

N - - - — (1458059531 - - {1,458,059,531} -

_ _ - - (17,8368.008) {17, 33U U001
Sl o PLESOH3S5,196 Pi,710,505,188  (£2,596,957 448} (47 709,492)  P7,253,764.093 {$28,483,1713 (BTG RS0, 08G, TS0 2 AT PIEBE A0




ik

(811 TROSED [abh

SOl sy wd | 9TYL0i Tod
s s L )
LI )
GOETFICTOE DTEOIYE
1EITIPCET 881!
TIL9Grd

(1897618 1)

LTEFIT 9001

DO TE9 198 i

EETINEAE T

(9 10°06L 5]

(006 81585 (d)

Snw‘wom.&_u IS
0TV OLTBEY FlasiR00

(910°067¢)

PSR F L)

EI RV S VRE:

DUTEY
(6] 20N

(61210}

pasuiboy
23 J0 SIS

([L1E8F8T
(5] Eo./;
$HI0IE

LT

00 BIN]
NEL O T -
suef{

[4

yaorg endey




GMA NETWORK, INC, AND SUBSEBEAREE;‘;’
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Lnded December 31

2020 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax £8.591,752.096 £3.760.446,805 3,332.037,442
Adiustments to reconcile income before income Lax to
net cash flows:
Program and other rights usage (Notes 8 and 22) 703,415,807 988,703,737 871,451 221
Pension expense (Note 26) 646,198,143 402,209,767 312,489,341
Diepreciation (Notes 12, 14, 22, 23 and 27) 545,575,201 577,704,447 586,448,899
Provision for £C1 (Notes 7 and 23) 347,195,883 18,207,347 169,631,067
Contributions 1o retirement plan asscts (Note 26) {259,0060.,000) (206,448,811 (279,003,770)
Armortization ol seftware costs {Notes 15 and 23) 40,264,073 26,788,389 23,173,007
Net unrealized foreign currency exchange loss V1377082 30,284,446 5,185,384
Interest expense (Notes 17 and 27) 205,545,123 33,595,345 36,251,389
Net gain on sale of property and equipment and
investment properties (Notes 12, 14 and 25) {17,250,932) {(21,308,209) {19,829, 180}
Interest income (Note 6) (13,715,413 (22.906,786) (25.,455,860%
Fguity in net carnings of joint ventures (Note 1) {3,908,740) {13.420.076) (6,351,690
Dividend income (Notes 10 and 25) {2.499,893)
Provision for impairment ol investment
propertics (Note 14) 2.048.502
Working capital changes:
[Decreases (increases) ing
Trade and other receivables (5,589,407,239) (492,022,233 (128.392,550)
Program and other rights {(647,591,883) (1.090,259.250) (467 5481253
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,695,413,947) (273,963 440} 41,054,711
Increases {deereases) in:
Trade payables and other cirrent labilities 571,870,472 239,761,995 (230,194,344
Obligations for program and other rights 45,573,277 18 449 Rdo (21,336,158}
Other long-term employee benefits £3,301,414 37.557.312 14,189,700
Benelits paid out of Group’s own funds (Note 26) (9,686,893 {7,955 884) (48,311,185)
Cash flows provided by operations 3,957,093,524 3,972,554,747 4,109.837.981
Income taxes paid (1,464,§43,968) (1,113,334,541) (978,599.651)
Interest received 13,808,751 24 981 846 24 382,746
Net cash Tows [rom eperating activities 2,506, 758,307 2.884.202,052 3.155,621,076
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of
Property and equipment (Note 12) (421,235,387) {673,419.792) (519,420,168)
Software costs {Note 135) (16,616,139) (65,484,770) 3,504,612)
[Land at revalued amount (Note [3) - - (7,593,293}
Proceeds from:
Sale of property and equipment {Note 12} 22,797,518 21,186,426 26,774,646
Sale of investment properties (Note 14) ' 4910714 4,104 D80
Dacreases {increasesy in other noncuwrrent assets 55,903,451 (75.898,945) 87.562 847
Advances to an associate and joint ventures
(Notes {1 and 203 (848,826} (8,131,342) {1,162,148)

(Formeared)
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Years Ended December 31

2020 2019 2018
Cash dividends received #381,500 e BE83,221
Return of investment in financial asset at FVOCI
{Note 10} - 6,089,790
Cotlection from an associate and joint ventures
{Notes 11 and 209 - 408,778
Net cash flows used In investing activities (353,617,880 (796,837,709) (405,863,939)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds rom availments of short-term loans
(Notes 17 and 32) 984,340,000 1.517.300,000 £,500,000,000
Payments of}
Cash dividends (Notes 2, 19 and 32) {1,474,749,102) (2,198.159,005) (2.436,132,546}
Shori-term loans (Notes 17 and 32) (641 ,895,600) (1,617,300,000) {1,5G0,000,0003
Principal portion of lease Habiliics
{(Notes 27 and 32) (21,762,363 {21,694,663) -
Interest expense (Note 32) {12,856,998) £45,663,399}% {36,125,000)
Net cash [Tows used in financing activities (1,166,923,463) (2,365 517427 (2,472,257.546)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 986,216,961 (278,152.784) 277,499,591
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (26,371,353) (25,980,882 1,767,236
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,254.971,656 2,559,1005,322 2.279.838.495
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR (Now 6) £3.214,817,264 P2.254,971,656 £2 559,105,322

Nog aecampanying Notes io Consaliduted Financiad Siotenenis.
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| GMA NETWORK, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSGLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. Corporate Information

GMA Netwaork, Inc. {GNI or the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries {coliectively referred to as
“the Group™) are incorporated in the Philippines. The Group is primarily involved in the business of
radio and télevision broadeasting. The Group is also involved in fiim production and other
information and entertainment-refated businesses. The Parent Company was registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 14, 1950, On July 20, 1993, the
Board of Directors (BOD)Y approved the extension of the corporate term of the Parent Company for
another 50 vears from June {4, 2000, In 1997, the SEC approved the said extension,

The Parent Company’s shares of stock are publicly listed and traded in the Philippine Stock
Exchange.

The registered office address of the Parent Company is GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue comer
EDSA, Quezon City.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group were approved and authorized for
issuance by the BOD on March 26, 2021,

2. Basis of Preparation and Consolidation, Statement of Compliance and Changes in Accounting
Policies and Disclosures

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial stalements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except Tor financial assets at fair vaiue through other comprehensive income (FVQOCE) and land at
revalued amounis, which are measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Phifippine peso, which is the Parent Company’s functional and presentation currency.
All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020, The Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

e Powerover the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);

»  [ixposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

« The ability to use its power over the investee to al"f"ect its refurns.
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Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voling rights results in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

s The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
s Right arising from other contractual arrangements
s The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of centrol,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the C‘ompaﬁy obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquived or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCT) are attributed 10 the equity
holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests (NCI), even if this resules in the
NCI having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Parent Company’s accounting policies.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
betwsen members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a less of contros, is accounted for as an
equity transaction,

I{ the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets (including
goodwil}), liabilities, NCI and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Any investment retained is
recognized at fair value,

NCI represents the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by owners of the Parent
Company and ate presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
within equity in the consclidated statements of financial position, separately from equity attributable
to holders of the Parent Company. NCI shares in fosses even ifthe losses exceed the non-controlling
equity interest in the subsidiary. NCI represents the equity interest in RGMA Network, tnc, (RGMA
Netwaork), a subsidiary incorporated in the Philippines with principal place of business at GMA
Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA Quezon City.

The consolidated financial statemenis include additional information about subsidiary that have NCI
that are material to the Parent Company. Management determined material partiy-owned subsidiary
as those with greater than 5% of non-controlling interests and/or subsidiaries. whose activities are
important to the Group as at end of the year,

Financial information of RGMA Networl, a subsidiary that has material NCI, are summarized below!

2020 2019
Proportion of equity interest held by NCI 1% 51%
Accumulated balances of material NCI B72,3587,870 P70,643,553
Net income allocated to material NCI 22,749,384 20,815,914
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The summarized financial information of RGMA Network are provided below.

L)

'

Summarized Statements of Comprehensive Income

20240 2019 2018
Revenues P283,916,546 £265,084,575 P230.,920,784
Expenses {220,191,603) (202,103,725) (173,163,510)
Provision for income tax {19,112,307) (22,165,333 (20,073.228)
Net income 44,636,636 40,815,517 37,684,046
Other comprehensive income
{loss) {6,245,230) (431.131) 0.052,796
Total comprehensive income P38,361,406 £40,3184.366 B46 736,842
Net income attributable to:
NCi P22.749,384 P20,815914 P19,218,863
Parent Campany 21,857,252 19.999 603 18,465,183
Total comprehensive income
attributable to;
NCI B19,564,317 220,596,027 £23.835,789
Parent Company 18,797,689 19,788,339 22,901,053
Summarized Statements of Financial Position
2020 2019
Total current assets P232,0111,479 B200.,412,398
Total noncurrent assets ' 36,449,915 26,175,579
Total current Babilities 4% 339 392 24 643,602
Total noncurrent liabilities 84,343,827 63,427,604
Total equity 141,878,175 138,516,771
Attributable to NCI £72,357,870 270,643,553
Afltributable to equity holders of
the Parent Company 269,520,365 PETRTI218
Sunmarized Cash Flows Information
2428 2019 2018
Operating {(P7,293,612) 268,068,256 Pi5,115,095
Investing (4,846,596} {838.659) (97,865)
Financing {35,000,000) (23,000,000) 15,000,000
Net increase (decrease} in cash
and cash equivalents {P47,140,208) £42,229.597 230,017,230

In 2020 and 2019, RGMA declared and paid dividends amounting to £17.85 million and

P12.75 million, respectively, to NCL
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The consalidated {financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the foltowing

subsidiaries as at December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Pereentage

of Orwnership

Principal Activities Darect  Indirect
Entertainment Busimess:
Alta Praductions Group, Inc. (Al) Pre and post-production services 100 —
Citynet Network Marketing and Television entertainment production 100 -
Productions, Inc, {(Citynet)
GMA Network Fums, Inc. Film production 100 -
GMA New Media, Inc. {GNMU) Converging technofogy 100 -
GMA Worldwide (Philippines), Inc.®  International marketing, handling Toreign propram 100 -
acquisitions and international syndication of the Parent
Company’s programs
Scenarios, Ing % Design, construction and maintenance of sets For TV stage 100 -
plays and concerts: ransportation serviees
RGMA Marketing and Productions, Ine. Music recording, publishing and video disiribution 100 E
RGMA Nevwork Radio broadeasting and mapagement 49
Serpt20 1, e * Design, construction and mainienance of sets for TV, stage HOf)
plays and concerts; transporialion and manpower
SEIVICES
Advertising LBusiness:
GMA Marketing & Productions, Exelusive marketing and sales arm of Parent Company ™ 100 -
e, (GMPyxsst airtime, evenls management, safes implementation,
tralfic services and monioring
Digily, Ing obdts Crafling, planning and handling advertising and other {orms - 100
of promotion including multi-media productions
Gthers:
Media Merpe Corporalion® 5% % {usiness development and operations for the Parent - 100
Company’s online publishing and advertising intiatives
Nimja Graphics, fng #5% #ess Ceased commercial operations tn 2004 - 5

A vayeed commercind operctions in 2030

A8 ider Hyuidetion

s firectly ovesed iegh Clivoet

i wvedd vommercial vperalions fn 2003

whivectl onesred eangh (VAT

Tnedirectlv envnied Hrongh GRAE coeused conerelal aperations i 2020
sdivecily evied throogh Alia: ceused commercial operations in 2004

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that
the Group has adopted the following new pronouncements starting January 1, 2020. The adoption of
these new standards and amendments did not have any significant impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

Effective beginning on or affer January |, 2020

b

= Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, Definition of o Business

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. Furthermore, the amendments clavity that a
husiness can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed o create outputs.
These amendments may impact future periods should the Group enter into any business

combinations.
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Amendments to PERS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures and PFRS 9, Financial Instruments,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to PFRS 9 provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships
that are directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is
affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainties about the timing and or amount of benchmark-
based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.

Amendments to Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 1, Presentation of Finanicial Steriements,
and PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Ervors, Definition of
Muterial

The amendinents provide a new definition of material that states “information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporfing entity.”

The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial
statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued on March 29, 20138

The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the cancepts contained therein override
the concepts or requirements in any standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to
assist the standard-setters in developing standards. to help preparers develop consistent
accounting policies where there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to
understand and interpret the standards.

The revised Conceptual Framework includes new concepts, provides updated definitions and
recognition criteria for assets and Habilities and clarifies some important concepts.

Amendments to PERS |6, COVID-19-refuted Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying the PFRS 16 requirement on lease
modifications to rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. A
lessee may elect not to assess whether a rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification ifit
meets atl of the following criteria:

s The rent concession is a direct consequence of COVID-19;

m  The change in lease payments resuits in a revised lease consideration that is subsiantially the
same as, or less than, the fease consideration immediately preceding the change;

= Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before

June 30, 2021, and

There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A tessee that applies this practical expedient will account for any change in lease payments
resulting from the COVID-19 related rent concession in the same way it would account for a
change that is not a lease modification, i.e., as a variable lease payment.

¥
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020,
Barly adoption is permitted.

The Group adopted the amendments beginning January 1, 2020. The amendment did not have an
impact in the consolidated financial statements as there were no rent concessions during the year.

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to [aisting Standards
Effective Subsequent fo December 31, 2020

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on
its consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements
when they become effective,

Effective beginning on or after Jarmuary 1, 2021

Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS 16, fnicrest Rate Benchmark Reforrn -

Phase 2 ,

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting

affects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free

interest rate (RFR):

s Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a
result of IBOR reform

v Relief from discontinuing hedging refationships

= Relief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as
a hedge of a risk component

The Group shall also disclose information about:

#  The about the nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arising from financial
instruments subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manages those risks; and

s Their progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity
15 managing that transition

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January |, 2021
and apply retrospectively, however, the Group is not required to restate prior periods.

FEffective beginning on or afier January /, 2022

Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference io the Conceptual Framework

The amendments are intended to repiace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments added an exception to the recognition principie of PFRS 3 to
avoid the issue of potential “day 27 gains or losses arising for Habilities and contingent liabilities
that would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets or Philippine-International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC} 21,
Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to PFRS 3 to clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acguisition date.
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
and apply prospectively.

Amendments o PAS 16, Plamt and Equipmeni: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced whife bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing
those ftems, in profit or foss.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
and must be applied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or afier the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the
amendments.

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfitling a Coniract

The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a
contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”™.
The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental
costs and an ailocation of costs directiy related to contract activities. General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded uniess they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January |, 2022
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

s Amendment to PFRS 1, Firsi-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standeards,
Subsidiary as a First-lime Adopter :

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16{2) of PFRS { to
measure cuniulative trans/ation differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based
on the parent’s date of fransition to PFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate or
joint venture that elects to apply paragraph Di6(a) of PFRS 1.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2022 with earlier adoption permitted.

s Amendment to PFRS 9, Financial Insiruments, Fees in the "T0 per cent’ fest for
Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The amendment clarifies the faes that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified financial liability are subsiantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability, These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or fender on the other’s
behall. An entity applies the amendment te financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or afier the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
appties the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The Group will apply the amendments to
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fnancial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

s Amendment to PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclude
cash flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of
PAS 41.

An entity applies the amendment prospectively to fair value measurements on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after fanuary 1, 2022 with
earlier adoption permitied.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2023
= Amendments to PAS |, Classification of Liabilities as Curvent or Noncurrent

The amendments clarify paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS |, Presentation of Financial Statements, 1o

specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or noncurrent. The amendments

clarify; '

= What is meant by a right to defer settlement

= That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

w  That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

=  That only it an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itseif an equity instrument
would the terms of a liabitity not impact its classitication

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023
and must be applied retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the impact the
amendments will have on current practice and whether existing loan agreements may require
renegotiation.

s PFRS 17, fnsurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
PFRS 4, /nsurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies o all types of
insurance contracts {i.e,, life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of
entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features, A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting modei for insurance contracts that

is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are

fargely based on grandfathering previous fecal accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a

comprehensive modal for insurance contracts, covering ali relevant accounting aspects. The core

of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

s A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach)

s A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainty for short-duration contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, with

comparative figures required. Early application is permitted.
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PFRS 17 is not applicable to the Group since it is not engaged in providing insurance nor issuing
insurance coniracts.

Dieferved effectivity

#  Amendments to PFRS 10, Consofidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or centributed t¢ an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resuiting trom the sale or
contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors® interests in the agsociate or joint venture.

On January {3, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) deferred the original
effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting
Standards Board completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that
may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of
accounting for associates and joint ventures.

e

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and labilities in consolidated statement of Tinancial position based on
current/noncurrent classification.

An assef is current when it is:

e expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in nornal operating cycle,

o held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e expected o be realized within twelve months alter the reporting period; or

= cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged ot used 1o settle a Hability for at
least twelve months after the reporting pesiod.

All other assefs are classitied as noncurrent.

A liability is current when:

e it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

2 it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e it is due to be settled within twetve manths after the reporting period; or

e there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabiiity for at least twelve months
after the reporting pertod.

All other Habilities are classified as noncurrent.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities, respectively.

The Group also modifies classification of prior year amounts to conform to current year’s
presentation.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liguid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
from acquisition date and that are subject {0 an insignificant risk of change in value,

Fair Yalue Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value related
disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or where
fair values are disclosed, are summarized in the foliowing notes:

e Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions, see Note 4

« Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hicrarchy, see Note 31

« land, see Note 13

¢ Investment properties, see Note 14

e Financial instruments (inchuding those carried at amortized cost), see Note 31

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

s in the principal market for the asset or Hability; or »
o in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or fiability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sulficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated firancial
statements are categorized within the fair vafue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the fowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical agsets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Valuaiion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

s Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the fowest {evel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have cccurred between tevels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting period.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or lability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above,

“Day |7 Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (a “Day 17 difference) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where the data used is
not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in
profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
fransaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 17 difference
aimount,

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that give rise to a [inancial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assefs
Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost, FVOCI, and fair value through profit or joss (FVPL}.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business maodel for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financiai asset at its fair value pius, in
the case of a financial asset not at FVPL. transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measyred at the transaction price determined under PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

in order for a financial asset to be classified and measured al amortized cost or FYOCL, it needs (o
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest” (SPPI) on the principa
amount outstanding. This assessment is referved to as the SPP test and is performed at an instrument
level.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date,

i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequeni Measurement. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

= financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
s financial assets at FVOCT with recyeling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
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= financial assets designated at FVOCE with no recyeling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition {equity instruments)
= financial assets at FVPL

The Group does not have debt instruments at FVOCT and financial assets at FVPL as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Finencial Assets ai Amoriized Cost (Debt Instruments). The Group measures financial assets at
amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

& The financial asset is held within a business mode! with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

s The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Hows that are
SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate {EIR)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized, m odified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost includes cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and refundable deposits {included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the
consolidated statement of financial position) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 (see Notes 6, 7, 135
and 300

Financial Assets Designated at FVOCT (Fquity instrumenis). Upon initial recognition, the Group can
elect to classily irrevocably its equity investments as cquity instruments designated at FVOCI when
they meet the definition of equity under PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, and are not
heid for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gaing and losses on these financial assets are never recycled te profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized as “Dividend income™ included under “Others - Net” account in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive inconie when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated at FYOCT are not subject to
impairment assessment.

The Group elected to classity irrevocably under this category its listed and non-listed equity
instruments and investment in quoted club shares as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 {see Notes 10
and 303,

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of & group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position) when:

s the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

= the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in fult without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through” arrangement, and either (2) the Group has transferred substantiatly all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially alf of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the assoctated lability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Imnairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for ECLs for all débt instruments not held at FYPL. BCLs are
hased on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of coliateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
defauit events that are possible within the next 12-months {a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss aflowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,

irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified appreach in caleulating ECLs, Therefore. the
Group does not irack changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allewance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other financial assets such as due from related parties and advances to associates and joint
ventures, the Group applies a general approach which measures ECL on either a 12-month or lifetime
basis depending on whether a significant increase in credit risks has occurred since initial recognition
or whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired, adjusted for the effects of collateral, forward-
looking factors and time value of money. '

For cash and cash equivaients, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At every
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk
using all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, In
making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit rating of the debt instrument or
comparable instruments.

The Group, in general, considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days
past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may alse consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off, in whole or in part, when the asset is considered uncollectible, the Group
has exhausted ali practical recovery efforts and has concluded that it has no reasonable expectations
of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portien thereof.
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Financial Liabilities

Initictd Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial Habilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings, payahles, or as detivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables and other current liabilities (excluding
payable to government agencies, customers” deposits and contract fiabilities), short-term {oans,
obligations for program and other rights, dividends payable and lease Habilities.

Subsequent Measuremeni. 'The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

Financial Liabitities at FVPL. Financial liabilities at FVPL Include financial labilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities
are ctassified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purposs of repurchasing i the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by PFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading uniess they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition’at FVPL are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in PFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any
financial lability as at FVPL as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Loans and Berrowings, After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in profic or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as “Interest expense” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

This category generally applies to frade payables and other current Habilities (excluding payable to
government agencies, customers” deposits and contract liabilities), short-term loans. obligations for
program and other rights, dividends payable and lease liabilities (see Notes 16, 17, 18, 19,27 and 30),

Perecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial Hiability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is freated as the derecognition of the original Hability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

+
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Classification of Financial Instruments Between Liability and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a confractual obligation to:

¢ deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;

e exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentiaily unfavorabie to the Group; or

s satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid deltvering cash or another financial asset
to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount afier
deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
Liability componeni on the date of issue. ‘

Cffsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabitities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statersent of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net hasis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the vight is
not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insolveney or bankruptey of the Group and ail of the counterparties.

Program and Other Rights

Program and other rights with finite {ives are stated at cost less amortization and impairment in value.
The estimated useful lives and the amortization method used depend on the manner and pattern of
usage of the acquired rights. The cost of program and other rights with multiple number of runs
within a specified term is amortized using straight line method up to the date of expiry.

From September 1, 2019, the Group changed its accounting policy for amortizing the cost of program
and other rights with no definite expiration from accelerated method based on the sum of the year’s
digit of ten years with salvage value of 10% of the total cost to straight-line method over ten vears
based on the current book values so as o allow recognition of amortization equally and to be
consistent with the method of amortizing program rights with multiple number of runs within a
specified term. Management takes the view that this policy provides reliable and more relevant
information because it is reflective of the pattern of consumption of program rights.

Amortization expense is shown as “Program and other rights usage” included under “Production
costs™ account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

For series of rights acquired, the cost is charged to profit or loss as each series is aired on a per
episode basis.

For rights intended for airing over the international channels, the cost is amortized on a straight-line
basis over the number of years indicated in the contract.

Prepaid Préduction Costs

Prepaid production costs, included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets™ account in the
consolidated statement of financial position, represent costs paid in advance prior to the airing of the
programs or episodes. These costs include talent fees of artists and production staff and other costs

directly attributable to production of programs. These are charged to expense under “Production
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costs™ account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income upon aiving of the related
program or episodes. Costs related to previously taped episodes determined not to be aired are
charged fo expense.

Inventories

Merchandise inventory and materials and supplies inventory, included under “Prepaid expenses and
other current assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial position, is stated at the tower
of cast and net reatizable value, Cost is determined using the weighted average method. Net
realizable value of inventories that are for sale Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realizable value of inventories not
held for sale is the current replacement cost,

Tax credits represent claims from the government arising from airing of government commercials and
advertisements avaited under Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1362, Pursuant to PD Na. 13062, these
will be collected in the form of tax credits which the Group can use in paying for import duties and
taxes on imported broadcasting related equipment. The tax credits cannot be used to pay for any
other tax obligation to the government.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group’s tax credits are classified as current under “Prepaid
expenses and other current assets™ account in the consolidated statement of financiai position.

Advances to Suppliers

Advances to suppliers, included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets™ account in the
consolidated statement of financial position, are noninterest-bearing and are generally applied to
acquisition of inventories, programs and other rights, availments of services and others.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization and impairment losses, if any, Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
property and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly. Al other repair and maintenance costs are recagnized in profit or foss
as incurred.

Land is measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses, if any, recognized after the date of
the revaluation. Valuations are generally performed every three to five years or more frequently as
deemed necessary to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount.

Any revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and hence, credited to the
a revatuation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case, the
increase is recognized in profit or loss, A revaluation deficit is recognized in profit or loss, except to

the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in the “Revaluation
increment on land - net of tax” account.
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Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Buildings, towers and improvements 11-20 years
Antenna and transmittes systems and broadeast equipment 5-10 years
Communication and mechanical equipment 3-5 years
Trangportation equipment 4-5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

The assets” residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation and amortization are reviewed at
each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortization is credited or charged to current operations.

Construction in progress is stated al cost. This includes cost of construction and other direct costs.
Construction in progress is not depreciated unti! such time as the relevant assets are completed and
put into operational use.

Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of real estate held for capital appreciation and rental.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo initial
recognition, investment properties, except land, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization and impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over 11-20 years.

The remaining useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each financial year-end.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposai of an investment
praperty are recognized in profit or loss in the peried of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is
the fair value at the date of change in use. [T owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property
and equipment up to the date of change in vse.

Investment in Artworks
Investment in artworks, included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the conselidated
statement of financial position, is stated at cost less any Impairment in value,
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Costs incurred in the acquisition and customization of new seftware, included under “Other
noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial position, are capitalized and
amortized on a straight-line basis over three to ten years.

impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying values of program and other rights, prepaid production costs, deferred production costs,
tax credits, investments and advances, property and eqaipment, right-of-use assets, investment
properties, soltware costs and investment in artworks are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carvying values may not be recoverable. 1fany such
indication exists, and if the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are
considered impaired and are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
these nonfinancial assets is the greater of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost to
sell or value in use and is determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. The fair value less
cost Lo sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction less cost
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows,
the recoverable amount is determined (or the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
fmpairment fosses, if any, are recognized in profit or foss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may ne longer exist or may have decreased. 1f any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment joss, except for
tand at revalued amount where the revaluation is taken to OCl, is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognized. [f that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined. net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the
depreciation and amortization charges are adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying ameunt, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. For
land at revalued amounts, the reversal of impairment is also recognized in OC! up to the amount of
any previous revaluation.

in the case of investments in associate and interesis in joint ventures, after application of the equity
methad, the Group determines whether it is necessary 1o recognize any additional impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investments in associate and interests in joint ventures. The Group
determines at each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in
associate and interests in joint ventures are impaired. fthis is the case, the Group caleulates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable amount of investments in
asscciate and interests in joint ventures, and the acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the
consolidated statement of cemprehensive income.

Investments in an Associate and Joint Ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.
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A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractualiy agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized at
cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group’s share of
net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date.

Goodwill relating Lo the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is not tested for impairment individuatly.

The Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture is included in profit or
loss. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL In addition,
when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the
associate or joint venture are eltminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on
the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income outside operating profit and
represents profit or loss after tax and NCI in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venlure,

1 the Group’s share of losses of an associate or & joint venture equals or exceeds its inferest in the
associate or joint venture, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Group. When necessary, adjustients are made to bring the accounting poiicies in line with those
of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group
determines whethet there s objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is
impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group caleulates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying vaiue, and then
recognizes the loss under “Lquity in net earnings (losses) of joint ventures™ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as
additional paid-in capital.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, net of any dividend declaration, adjusted for the
effects of changes in accounting pelicies as may be required by PFRS” transitional provisions.

Treasury Stocks and Underlving Shares of the Acquired Philippine Deposit Recgipts (PDRs)

The Parent Company’s own reacquired equity instruments are deducted from equity. No gain or loss
is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issuance
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments,

Fach PDR entitles the holder to the economic interest of the underlying common share of the Parent
Company. The Parent Company’s ownership of the PDIRs are presented similar to treasury shares in
the consolidated statement of financial pesition,

Dividends on Commen Shares of the Parent Company

Dividends on common shares are recognized as Hability and deducted from equity when approved by
the BOD of the Parent Company. Dividends for the year that are approved after reporting period are
dealt with as an event afler reporting period.

Revenue Recognition

a. PERS {5, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when confrof of the goods or services are
transterred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be enfitied in exchange for those goods or services, The Group assesses its revenye
arrangements against specific eriteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group
has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by translerring a
promised good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good
or service. A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in tme or over time. The
amount of revenue recognized is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Advertising Revenne. Revenue is recognized in the period the advertisements are aired.
Payments received for advertisements before broadeast (pay before broadceast) are recognized as
income on the dates the advertisements are aired. Prior io liquidation, these are classified as
unearned revenue under “Contract liabilities”™ under ““Trade pavables and other current liabilities”
accouns, in the consclidated statement of financial position.

Goods received in exchange for airtime usage pursuant to exchange deal coniracts executed

between the Group and its customers are recorded at fair market values of assets received. Fair
market value is the current market price.
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Tax credits on aggregate airtime credils from government sales avaited of under P No. 1362 are

recognized as revenue when there is reasonable certainty that these can be used to pay duties and
taxes on imported broadeasting related equipment.

Subscription Revenue, Subscription fees are recognized over the subscription period in
accordance with the terms of the subscription agreements.

Sale of goods. Sale of goods pertain to sale of set-top boxes, digital TV mobile receivers and
other merchandises. Revenue is recognized at a point in fime when delivery has taken place and
transfer of conirol has been compieted. These are stated net of sales discounts.

Revenue from Distribution and Content Provisioning. Revenue is recognized upon delivery of
the licensed content to customers.

Production Revenue. Production revenue is recognized at a point in time when project-retated
services are rendered.

Commission from Artist Center. Revenue is recognized as revenue on an accrual basis in
accordance with the terms of the related marketing agreements.

b.  Revenue Recognition Outside the Scope of PFRS 15

Rentul Income. Revenue from lease of property and equipment and investiment properties is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend Income. Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right fo receive payment is
established.

Tnterest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest acerues, taking into account the effective
yield on the asset.

Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of Joint Ventures. The Group recognizes its share in the net
income or Joss of joint ventures preportionate to the equity in the economic shares of such joint
ventures, in accordance with the equity method.

Oiher Income. Other income is recognized when there is an incidental economic benefit, other
than the usual business operations, that will flow to the Group through an increase in asset or

reduction in fiability that can be measured reliably.

Contract Balances

Trade Receivables. A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of censideration that is
unconditional (1.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
Refer to the accounting policies of Financial Instruments section.

Contract Assels. A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the custemer. 1f the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract Liabilities. A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer

for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer, I a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the
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customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due,
whichever is earlier. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Greup perferms ynder
the contract.

frcremental Costs to Obtain a Contract

The Group pays sales commissions to its account executives for each contract that they obtain for
advertising agreements with customers. The Group has elected to apply the optional practical
expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the Group to immediately expense sales
commissions {presented as part of “Marketing expense”™ under “General and administrative expenses”
account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income) because the amortization period of
the asset that the Group otherwise would have used is less than one year.

Borrowing Costs '

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the
cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Expenses
Expenses, presented as “Production costs”, “Cost of sales”, and “General and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, are recognized as incurred.

Pension and Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Parent Compuny has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
permanent employees. Other entities are covered by Repubiic Act (R.A) 7641, otherwise known as
“The Philippine Retirement Law”, which provides for qualified employees to receive an amount
equivalent to a certain percentage of monthly salary at normal retirement age. In addition, the Group
has agreed to pay the cash equivalent of the accumulated unused vacation Jeave of the employees
upon separation from the Group.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit
credit method.

Defined Benefit Plans. The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present vaiue
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan
assets (if any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling.

The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefils under defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credie
method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts intluded in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit Jiability), are recognized
immediately in the statement of financial pesition with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
« The date that the Group recognizes rejated restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Group recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “Production
costs” and “General and administrative expenses” accounts in consotidated statements of
comprehensive income (by function):

e  Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements.
e Net interest expensg or income

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employce benefit fund. Fair value of plan assets is
based on market price information. When no market price is available, the fair value of plan assets is
estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk
associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those assets {or, if they
have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related obligations). if the fair value
of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement
of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the ptan.

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fgir value when and only when reimbursement is

virtually certain.

i eases starting fanuary 1, 2019 - Upon Adoption of PFRS 16

Leases. The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time n
exchange for consideration.

Group as Lessee. The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes iease liabilities to
make lease pavments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets,

o Right-of-use Assets, The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the
lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumuiated depreciation and impairment fosses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
fabilities recognized, initlal direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received and estimate of costs to be incurred by the
iessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the undertying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories, Unless the Group is reasonably
certain to ebtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful jife

and the fease term as follow: '
Land 2to 12 years
Buildings, studio and office spaces 210 6 years

ANGH AR



-4 -

Right-of-use assels are subject to impairment.

e Leuse Liabilities. At the commencernent date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease fiabilities
measured at the present vaiue of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variabie lease payments that depend en an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do ot depend on an index or a rate are recognized as
expense i the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment oceurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabitities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

s Short-term Leases. The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to jts short-
term leases (Le.. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date or’initial application of PFRS 16 and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on
short-tesm leases are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially zll the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classilied as operating leases, Rental income from operating leases are
recognized as income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income, Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases before January 1, 2019 - Prior to Adoption of PFRS 16

The determination of whether the arrangement is, or confaing a lease is based op the substance of the
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfiliment of the arrangement depends on the use of a
specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made
afier the inception of the lease, if any, if the following applies:

a. There is a change in contractual lerms, other than a renewal or exiension of the arrangement;

b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the fease term;

¢. There is a change in the determination of whether fulfiliment is dependent on a specified asset; or

d. There is substantial change to the asset.

Where the reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), {¢), or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

The Group determines whether arrangements contain a lease to which lease accounting must be

applied. The costs of the agreements that do not take the legal form of a lease but convey the right to
use an asset are separated into lease payments if the entity has the contro! of the use or access to the
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asset, or takes essentially all of the outputs of the asset. The said lease component for these
arrangements is then accounted for as lTnance or operating lease.

Group as Lessee. Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as
expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases are
recognized as income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the fease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Forelgn Currency-denominated Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiaily recorded in the functional currency exchange rate at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retransiated at the functienal currency closing exchange rate at financial reporting period. All
differences are taken to profit or loss in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. For income tax purposes, foreign exchange gains and losses are treated as taxable
income or deductible expenses when realized.

Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and labilities for the current period are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 1o the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantiaily enacted at reporting
period.

Current income tax refating to items recognized directly in equity is recegnized in equity and not in
profit or foss, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax refurns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and estabiishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred Tax, Deferred tax is provided using the Hability method on temporary differences at
reporting period between the tax bases ot assets and ligbilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of
excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused
net operating loss carryover {INOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefits of excess
MCIT over RCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized, except:

= where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of an asset or Jiability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and
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e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investmenis in subsidiaries,
assoctates and interests in foint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to atlow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax labilities are recognized for all faxable temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabie profit; and

& inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investiments in subsidiaries, associales
and interests in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary ditferences
can be controlied and it is probable that the tempaorary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws to be enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss,
Deferred tax items recognized in corretation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assels against cusrent tax Habilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same faxable entity and the
same laxation authority.

Crediiable Withholding Taxes. Creditable withholding taxes represent amounts withheld by the
Group’s customers and is deducted from the Group’s income tax payable.

Vatue-added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if
applicable.

When VAT from szles of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from
purchases of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input
VAT exceeds VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or pavable to, the taxation authority is included as part of

“Prepaid expenses and other current assets” or “Trade payables and other current liabilities™ accounts
in the consolidated statement of financial position,
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Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the year aitributable to the equity holders of
the Parent Company, net of income attributable to preferred shares, by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the year, after considering the retroactive adjustments for any
stock dividends declared, ifany.

Dituted EPS is caleulated by dividing the net income for the vear attributable to the equity holders of
the Parent Company (inclusive of income attributable to preferred shares) by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the vear, plus the weighted average number of
common shares that would be issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential common shares.

Seegment Reporting

For management purposes, the Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately
into television and radio airtime, international subscriptions and other business activities. Such
business segments are the basis upon which the Group reports its primary segment information. The
Group considers television and radio operations as the major business segment. The Group operates
in two geographical areas where it derives its revenue. Financial information on business segments is
presented in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies

Contingent fabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
in the notes to consolidated financial slatements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to censolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Events afler Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the reporting
period {adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when
material.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assemptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to imake judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
related notes at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these judgments,
estimates and assumptions could result in outcemes that require a material adjustment 1o the carrying
amount of the asset or Liability affected in future periods.
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Judpments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

Consolidation of Entities in which the Group holds less than Majority of Voting Rights. The Group
considers that it controls RGMA Network even though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights.
This is because the Group is the single largest shareholder of RGMA Network with a 49% equity
interest. The remaining $1% of the equity shares in RGMA Network are owned by several parties.
Since September 27, 1995, which is the date of incorporation of RGMA Network, there is no history
of the other shareholders collaborating to exercise their votes collectively or to outvole the Group.
The carrying amount of NCI as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are £72.36 million and

£70.64 mitlion, respectively.

Assessment of Significant Infliuence over the Investee. The Parent Company holds 25% ownership
interest in Optima Digital, Inc. as at December 31, 2020 and 2019. Even with more than 20% voling
rights, management assessed that the Parent Company does not have the power fo participate in the
policy-making processes, including decisions to affect its returns in the form of dividends. Further,
the Parent Company does not have the ability to participate in the financial and operational poficies
decision-making of the investee to affect its relevant activities.

Determination of Lease Term of Contracts with Renewal and Termination Options — Group as a
Lessee (Starting January 1, 2009 - Upon Adoption of PFRS 16, The Group determines the [ease
term as the non-cancetiabie term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to
extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, il it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Gmup.has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options, The Group
applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option
to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
contro} and affects its ability fo exercise or not Lo exercise the option to renew or fo ferminate (e.g..
construction of significant leasehold improvements or sighificant customization to the leased asset).

The Group did not include the renewal period as part of the lease term for its leases as these are
subjeci fo mutual agreement and are not reasonably ceriain o be exercised. Furthermore, the periods
covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term because they are reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

Operating Leases - Group as Lessor. The Group has entered into various lease agreements as lessor.
The Group had determined that the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying property were
retained by the Group. Accordingly, the eases are classified as an operating lease.

Total rental income amounted to P6.89 million, £8.56 million and P8.27 million in 2020, 2019 and
2018, respectlively {see Note 25).

Operating Leases - Group as Lessee (Prior wo Javuary 1, 2019 - Prior to Adoption of PFRS 16), The
Group has entered into various lease agreements as a lessee. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that the lessors retain all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the propertics and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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Rental expense charged to operations amounted to P927.34 million in 2018 (see Notes 22, 23 and 27).

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting period, that have a sigaificant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumnstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Estimating the Incremenial Borrowing Raie (Starting January [, 2019 - Upon Adoption of PFRS 16},
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing raie (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The [BR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available {such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates} when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates {such as the counterparty’s stand-
alone credit rating).

The Group’s lease liabilities amounted to £76.86 million and B105.79 million as at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively {see Note 27}

Estimating Allowance for ECL. The following information explains the inputs, assumptiens and
techniques used by the Group in estimating ECL for trade receivables:

e Simplified approach for trade reccivables

The Group uses a simplified approach for calculating ECL on trade receivabies through the use of
provision matrix to caleulate ECLs. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type).

The provision matrix is initialty based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The
Group then calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (e.g.. gross domestic product,
inflation rate, unemployment rate) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaulis in the Group’s operating segments, the historical default rates are
adjusted. Atevery reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

e Definition of default for trade receivables

The Group defines a trade receivable as in default, when it meets one or more of the following
criteria:

o The counterparty is experiencing financial difficulty or is insolvent

s The receivable is more than 360 days past due. The determination of the pericd is based on
the Group’s practice and agreament with their customers within the industry.

. L



230 -

e Incorporation of forward-looking mnformation

The Group considers a range of refevant forward-looking macro-economic assumptions for the
determination of unbiased general industry adjustments that support the caleulation of ECLs, A
broad range of forward-looking information are considered as economic inputs such as the gross
domestic product, inflation rate, unemployment rates and other economic indicators.

The macroeconomic factors are aligned with information used by the Group for other purposes
such as strategic planning and budgeting.

The Group identifies and documents key drivers of credit risk and credit losses of each portfofio
of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships
between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

Predicted relationship between the key macro-economic indicators and defauit and loss rates on
variouys portfolios of financial assets have been developed based on analyzing historical data over
the past 5 years. The methodologies and assumptions including any forecasts of future economic
conditions are reviewed regularly.

e Crouping of instruments for losses measured on collective basis

For expecled credit loss provisions modelied on a gollective basis, a grouping of exposures is
performed on the basis of shared risk characteristics, such that risk exposures within a
segmentation are homogeneous. The Group segmentized its receivables based on the type of
customer {e.g., corporate and individuals).

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group™s-historical cradit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future.

Provision for ECL amounted to 347.20 million, £18.36 million and #109.63 million in 2020,
2019 and 2018, respectively (see Notes 7 and 23). The allowance for ECL amounted to
P766.52 million and B549.64 million as al December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables amounted to 10,466.54 million and
P5,257.15 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 7).

Classification and Amoréization of Program and Other Rights. Portions of program and other rights
are classified as current and noncurrent assets. Current portion represents those expected to be aired
any time within its normal operating cycle, whereas the noncurrent portion represents those without
definite expiration.

From September 1, 2019, the Group changed its accounting policy for amortizing the cost of program
and other rights with no definite expiration date from accelerated method based on the sum of the
vear's digit of ten years with salvage value of 10% of the total cost to straight-line method aver ten
vears based on the current book values so as to altow recognition of amortization equally and to be
consistent with the method of amortizing program rights with multiple number of runs within a
specified term. Management takes the view that this policy provides reliable and more relevant
information because it is reflective of the paltern of consumption of the program rights.
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The Group estimates the amortization of program and other rights with finite lives using straight line
method up to the date of expiry and those with no definite expiration date of up €0 ten years, which is
the manner and pattern of usage of the acquired rights. in addition, estimation of the amortization of
program and other rights is based on the Group’s experience with such rights. 1t is possible, however,
that future resules of vperations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by
changes in the factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period
would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances.

Program and other rights usage amounted to 703,42 miilion, #988.70 million and #871.43 million in
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively (see Notes § and 223, Pragram and other rights, nef of
accumulated impairment in vatue of £2.70 million, amounted to P942.97 million and

P1,038.79 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively {see Note 8},

Estimating Allowance for Inveniory Losses. The Group provides aliowance for inventory losses
whenever the net realizable value becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical detericration,
obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes. The allowance account is reviewed
periodically to reflect the accurate valuation of the inveniories,

The carrying value of merchandise inventory and materials and supplies inventory, included under
“Prepaid expenses and other current assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial
position, amounted to B237.05 mitlon and P12.76 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively {(see Note 9). There were no provisions for inventory losses in 2020, 2019 and 2018.

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment, Sofiware Costs and Investment Properties.

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and investment
properiies based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The
estimated usefui lives of property and equipment, software costs and investment properties are
reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical
wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.
in addition, estimation of the useful fives of property and equipment, software costs and investment
properties is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and
experience with similar assets, [t is possibie, however, that Tuture results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above.
The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these
factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment,
software costs and investment properties would increase the recorded general and administrative
expenses and decrease noncurrent assets,

There has been no change in the Group’s estimate of useful lives of its property and equipment,
software costs and investment properties in 2020 and 2019,

Tofal depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended Pecember 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
amounted to £558.06 miltion, P573.83 mitlion and P609.62 million, respectively (see Notes 12, 14,
15,22 and 23).

Revaluation of Land. The Group engages an accredited appraiser to determine the fair value of the
fand used in operations. Fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence adjusted
based on certain elements of comparison. The fair value amount wouid differ if the Group made
different judgments and estimates or utilized a different basis for determining fair value.

Valuations from an accredited appraiser are generatly pesformed every three to five years or more

frequently as deemed necessary to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount.
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In 2020 and 2019, there were no additional revaluation increment on Jand due to insignificant
movements in the fair value of the fand. There is a revaluation increment on land in 2018 amounting
to 2990.37 million. The revalued amount of land, which is classified under “Property and
equipment” account in ithe statements of financial position, amounted to £2,803.20 million as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 (see Notes 13 and 31).

Impairment of Nosfinancicd Assefs. For prepaid production costs, tax oredits, invesiments and
advances, property and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties, program and other
rights, investment in artworks, deferred production costs and software costs, impairment testing is
performed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable,

The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:

s significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;

s significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for averall
business;

» significant negative industry or economic trends; and

s obsolescence or physical damage of an asset.

‘The Group recognizes an impairment foss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell or asset’s
value in use. Recoverabie amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the
CGU to which the asset belongs, ,
As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group did not identify any indicator of impairment on its
nonfinancial assets, hence, no impairment tests were carried out.

The carrying values of nonfinancial assets as at December 31 foliow:

2020 2019
Land af revalued amounts (see Note 13) B2 803,196,184 R2,803.194,184
Property and equipment - at cost (sec Note 12) 2,588,113,704 2,.695,162,487
Program and other rights (see Note §) 942,966,005 1,038,789.929
Prepaid production costs (sce Note 9) 428,553,144 282,840,960
tnvestments and advances (see Note 1) 184,524,315 179,766,749
Tax credits {see Note 9} £74,199,496 58,699 529
Software costs (see Note 15} 97,071,541 120,396,750
Right-of-use assets (see Note 27) 89,268,276 129,802,186
Investment properties (see Note 14) 34,869,834 36,252,221
Investment in artworks (see Note 15) 10,186,136 10,186,136
Deferred production costs (see Note 15) 1,061,628 1,088,162

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group reviews its deferred tax asseis at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying amount {o the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be availabie to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
The Group’s assessiment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary difference
and carryforward benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT over RCIT is based on the projected taxable
income in the following periods.
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Recognized deferred tax assets amounted to B1,932.25 million and 1,246.43 million as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, while unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to
PR.56 million and £4.95 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 28).

Pension and Oiher Employee Benefits. The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of
pension benefits is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating
such amounts. Those assumptions arve described in Note 26 and include, among others, discount rate
and salary increase rate. Due to the complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

Penston liability amounted to £4,915.13 million and £2,733.59 miflion as at December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively (see Note 20).

Determination of Fair Value of Financial Assets at FYOCI Financial assets at FVOCH are carried
and disclosed at fair value, which requires extensive usg of accounting estimates and judgments.
When the fair values cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation technigues that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these models 1s taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. The fair value of financial assets at FVOCIT are enumerated in
Note 31.

Determination of Fair Value of Invesiment Properties. PFRS requires disclosure of fair value of
investment, properties when measured at cost.

The Group used the services of an independent professional appraiser in estimating the fair value of
properties. The appraisers conducted an actual inspection of the property and considered the
foliowing in the study and analyses in arriving at the estimate of fair value: {a) extent. character and
utility of the property; (b} sales and holding prices of similar properties; and (c) highest and best use
of the property. The description of valuation technigues used and key inputs to fair valuation of
investment properties are enumerated in Note 14 of the consolidated financial statements.

Contingencies. The Group is currently involved in varicus claims and legal proceedings. The estimate
of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with fegal
counsel handling the defense in these matters and is based upen an analysis of potential results. The
Group currently does not believe that these proceedings will have a material adverse etfect on the
Group’s financial position,

(=43

Segment Infermation ,

Business Segmenis
For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on its products and
services and has three reporlabie segments, as {ollows:

v  The television and radio segment, which engages in television and radio broadcasting activities
and which generates revenue from sale of national and regional advertising time.

= The international subscription segment which engages in subscription arrangements with
international cable companies.

s Other businesses which include movie production, consumer products and other services,

L



The Executive Committee, the chief operating decision maker, and Management monitor the
operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
aflocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on net income or
loss and is measured consistently with the net income or loss in the consolidated financial statements.
On a consolidated basis, the Group’s performance is evaluated based on consolidated net income for
the year. :

Cicographical Segments

The Group operates in two major geographical segments - tocal and international. Local refers to
revenues earned in the Philippines, the home country. Significant portion of the revenues earned
locally pertain fo television and radio airtime. International refers to revenues earned in United States
and in other locations (which include Middle Fast, Europe, Australia, Canada, Guam, Singapore,
Hongkong and Japan). The Group ties up with cable providers to bring local television programming
outside the Philippines.

The Group’s revenues are mostly generated in the Philippines, which is the Group’s country of
domicile,

Noncurrent assets consist of property and equipment, land at revalued amounts, investment properties
and intangible assets which are all located in the Philippines.

The Group does not have a single external customer whose revenue accounts for 10% or more of the
Group’s revenues.

Inter-segment Transactions

Segment revenues, segment expenses and segment results include transfers among business segments
and among geographical segments. The transfers are accounted for at competitive market prices
charged to unrelated customers for similar services. Such transfers are eliminated upon coensclidation,

Measurement Basis

The amount of segment assets and liabiiities and segment profit or loss are based on measurement
principles that are similar to those used in measuring the assets and liabilities and profit or loss in the
consoiidated financial statements, which is in accordance with PFRS.

IR TG



Local Tuderualivinl
Teios fpbun amd o Oty buailieases aternlivasd selseripten Gninaiiuis Corpsliduied
2628 2419 2B i) 2oly 2018 220 201y 2420 R 2015 FU20 2004 ERIES

B

RIGG 43122
FU6 N3G
BIH21N)L 38

BISLHL963.000

510103609

Brpgwdd

I
(BEAG] 19,70

o RN 268961957 PR265.566.317 B 067 R Pong 7E8.278 BoBl 355287 #3US8u572 BI3523 53 (IR SR
L25,195,727) (54933966 (659381} - - - - - - [(36.231.35%
33502130 1330377 2401308} 1628219 KT ER Rt Y] [15.5857.6474 33765 - - PRV
12IR7 893 IS L 177l - - - - -
[ - - JOG8.740 6350 - - - -
194,593,594 1613225363 HRI1LAT2 SIS - - - [RRERIALXT L)) 46622 873}
L4187 2055 GONTTh RANE TS I67.343.365) (115 el sai (238299349 267318189 D uam; (5 ;
Floud 165759 EL3v6442.600 R F415815 412 B163. 730482 [T EETERE Eouy daguew  (PLTISILT) S
AsBE LR AND LABEL LD
AssCIs - -
#215942558724 BLLISLIEZS1Y  REA2LTIG834 PGRHLIRT 746 FITASLO6F BULS A6 730 (RL3G6ILLIRYY  (RLIVE [EARRRIANEIN Fli e
- bieyuity IBIINE1Y SLEE6I 15531855 - $3UBLETE S
993,543,871 1132 455 45 AT - - 1267 1170718852 Il
Slp 6 LEW  BELELE LA [T FYLT 61175 [EE 103 sk B335 0T £i

FIL

#22,9 74429004

RS U200 PLLUST SR

B320. 302 08

BHOT 50465 8392 633, 142 P aifi

BaGHS B0 1Y

FelTT BLLESTIEG] P TIOSL IS REIN 4L - g # FLLIT2A5 B (015,263 [ 2 » P 15, 205,012 AL
GLRELAIE R TTN] 165485 31,092071 - 35 300778 - - 63082792
393,293 - - ~ - - - 7593203

15632954 7132758 2HASLROT RN 37 S 20,59 359 5 L

T




- 36 -

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2420 2049
Cash on hand and in banks P2,892, 545281 £1.852,507,801
Short-term deposits 322,271,983 402.463 855
£3.214.817,264 P2254971,656
Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
Interest income earned from bank deposits and short-term deposits amounted to B13.72 million,
£22.91 million and £25.46 miilion in 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
7. Trade and Other Receivables

2020 2019
Trade:

Television and radio airtime B16,642,475,005 P5.227.766,620
Subseriptions 264,493,491 386,954,129
Others 169,931,862 183,958,408

Nentrade:
Advances to officers and employees 6,866,866 5,913,890
Others (see Note 20) 149,288,785 2.194 508
11,233,056,009 5.806,787,555
Less allowance for ECL 166,518,314 549 639,602

P16,466,537,695 P5257,147.953

Trade Receivables

Television and Radio Airtime. Television and radio airtime receivables are unsecured, noninterest-
bearing and are normally coliected within 360 days. Invoicing normally takes around 3G days from
airing.

Television and radio airtime receivables include unbilied airtime receivables, arising when
advertisements have been aired but billing or acceptance by the customer has been delayed due to
time lag in completing all required documents.

Subscriptions Receivable. Subscriptions receivable pertain to receivables from international channel
subscriptions and advertisements. These are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and normally collected

within 360 days.

Other Trade Recefvablies. Other trade receivables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are
generally on 60-90 day terms upon receipt of invoice by the customers.

Nontrade Receivables

Advances to Officers and Employees and Other Nontrade Receivables. Advances to officers and
employees and other nontrade recervables are noninterest-bearing and are normally collected within
the next financial year.

L



Allowance for ECL on Trade Receivables

The movements in the allowance for ECLs are as follows:

ST

2820
Corporate Individual Total
Balance at beginning of year P539,184,505 P16,455,897 £549.639.602
Provisien (reversal) for the year
(see Note 23) 347,341,442 {145,559} 347,195,883
Writeoff (138,317,171) - {130,317,171)
Balance at end of year P756,208,776 £16,309.538 B766,518,314
2019
Corporate Individual Tetal
Balance af beginning of year P517,554,094 B13,788.101 B531,342.255
Provision {reversal) for the year
{sece Note 23) 21,630,411 (3,333,064) 18,297,347
Balance at end of year ££5390.184,505 10,455,097 2349,639,602
Program and Other Rights
Pefails and movement in this account are as foliows:
2026
Program Story/Format Program Rights -
Rights Rights incidentals Tatal
Cost
Balance at beginning of year 2GE3,996,591 £30,699,307 £26,796,291 £21,041,492,189
Additions 536,438,931 6,724,630 64,478,322 607,591,883
Program and other righis
usage {see Note 22) {G26,022,128) (10,276,493) (67,117,186) {703, 415,807
Balance at end of vear BU4,413.394 27,147,444 24,107,427 945,668,265
Accumulated impainment iz valug {2,702,268) - = (2,702,260
891,715,134 27,147,444 24,167,427 942,966,005
Less noncurrent postion 192,229,776 - — 192,229,776
Current portion £699.481,358 BI7,147 444 £24,107,427 P754,736,229
2019
Program Story/Format  Program Rights -
Righis Righis Incidentals Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of vear POYT 873,774 £35.219.240 PI6,843.602 FO3G 9306676
Additions Q85927729 25,480,067 78.851,454 1,090,259.250
Program and other rights
usape (see Note 22) (919 804 912) - ((68.898,825) (988,703 737}
Balance at end of year GR3.996,591 , 30,699.307 26,796,291 1.041,492 189
Accumulaled impatiment in value (2,702,260) - - {2,702 260)
G81.294,331 30,699 307 26756201 1.038.786.929
L.ess noncurrent portion 196,376,347 : - 196,376,347
Clurrent portion 784917984 £30.690 307 B26. 796,291 #842 413,582
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9.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

2020 2010

Advances to suppliers (see Note 27) £844,130,982 P266,638,047
Prepaid production costs 428,553,144 282 846,960
Merchandise inventory 226,554,349 -
Input VAT 191,780,897 134,200,895
Tax credits 174,199,496 58.699.529
Prepaid expenses : 82,521,474 96,951,719
Creditable withholding taxes 55,821,536 61,906,171
Materials and supplies inventory 16,500,558 12,756,017
Others 252,876 1,908,021
22014315306 £915.90]1,359

Advances to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are generally applied to acquisition of program and
other rights, inventories, availment of services and others within the next financial vear,

Prepaid production costs represent costs paid in advance prior o the airing of the programs or
episodes. The Group expects to air the refated programs or episodes within the next financial year,

Merchandise inventory consists mainly of set-top boxes, digital TV mobile receiver and other
merchandises for sale by the Group. In 2020, the Group launched the GMA Affordabox, a digital box
which allows users to receive clear pictures and sounds in their television sets through digital
transmission. Cost of sales retated to digital boxes amounted to #479 42 miltion in 2020

Input VAT pertains to VAT on purchase or importation of goods and services which are to be
claimed and credited in the succeeding month’s filing of VAT return,

Tax credits represent claims of the Parent Company from the government arising from airing of
government commercials and advertisements. The Parent Cempany expects to utilize these tax
credits within the next financial year.

Prepaid expenses include prepayments for rentals, insurance and other expenses.

Creditable withholding taxes represent amounts withheld by the Group’s customers and is deducted
from the Group’s income fax payable.

Materials and supplies inventory includes the Group’s office supplies, spare parts and production
materials.

. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

This account consists of the following:

. 2020 2019
Listed equity instruments 2117,273,005 P175.669,513
Non-listed equity instruments 74,859,083 67,763,547

£192,132,084  P243.433.060

TRRM AR R



Investment in equity instriments pertaing to shares of stock and club shares which are not held for
irading. The Group assessed the equity instruments to be strategic in nature.

The movement of financial assets at FYOCI are as follows:

2028 2019

Balance at beginning of vear £243,433.060 240,255,846
Unrealized gain (loss) on fair value changes duting

the year (51,300,972) 3177214

Balance at end of year 192,132,088 B243.433.060

Dividend income eamed from financial assets at FVOCTH amounted to nil in 2020 and 2019 and
P2.50 million in 2818,

The movements in net unrealized loss on financial assets at FVOCI are as fellows:

2020 2019
Balance at beginning of year - net of tax (121,245,454) (25,051,345)
Net unrealized gain (loss) on fair value changes
during the year €51,300,972) 3,177,214
Tax effect of the changes i fair market values ) 5,836,934 (371,323)
Balance at end of year (847,709,492 (£2,245454)

1P E-Games Veniures. Ine.

In 2015, 1P E-Games Ventures, Ine. (IPE) issued 13,000.00 million of its own common shares to the
Group in exchange of the Group’s investment in X-Play Online Games Incorporated (X-Play) and in
settlement of P30.00 million advances and £50.00 mitlion airtime credits granted by the Group to X-
Play. Atinitial recognition, the Group recognized at fair value the IPE shares amounting to

P130.00 million.

Of the £50.00 million airtime credits, #22.00 million has not been implemented at the date of
exchange and therefore was recognized by the Group as unearned revenue presented as “Contract
liabilities”, included as part of *“Trade payables and other current Habilities” in 2020 and 2019
(see Note 16).

[, Envestments and Advances

The following are the details of this account:

2020 2019
fnvestment in an associate and interests in joint
ventures #83,982,574 886,073,834
Advances {o an associale and joint ventures ,
{see Note 20) 100,541,741 99,692 915

£184,524,315 179,766,749
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The movements in the account are as follows:

2020 2619
Investment in an associate and interests in joint
venfures:
Acquisition cost -
Balance at beginning and end of year B131,722,056 B131,722,056
Accumulated equity in net losses:
Balance at beginning of year (51,648,222) (65,068.298)
Equity in net earnings during the year 3,508,740 13,420,076
Balance at end of year , (47,739,482 {51,648,222)
83,982,574 80,073 834
Advances o an associate:
Balance at beginning of year 97,121,83¢ 89,047,031
Advances during the year {ses Nolg 20) 600,186 8,104,799
Balance at end of year 97,722,016 97,121,830
Advances to joint ventures:
Balance al beginning of year 2,571,885 2.544 342
Advances during the year (see Note 20) 248,640 20,543
Balance at end of year 2,819,725 2,571,085
Total investments and advances BI84,524,315 P179,766,749

The ownership interests in joint ventures and an associate, which were all incorporated in the
Philippines, and are accounted for under the equity method, as at December 31, 2020 and 2019
follows:

Principal Activities

Percentage of
Ownership

Associate - Direct indirect
Mont-Aire Realty and Development
Corporation {Mont-Aire) Real Estate 49 -
Joint Ventures:
INO7 Interactive, Inc. (INQTY* internet Publishing 50 -
Philippine Entertainment Portal (PEPY**  internet Publishing 50
Gamespan, Inc. (Gamespan)** Betting Games 50
=Nol operational.
ndirect investment through GNMI
The carrying values of investments and the related advances are as follows:
2024
Advances
Investments {Note 2() Total
Associate -
Mont-Aire 238,350,619 B97,722,816 2136,072,635
Joint ventures:
Gamespan 8,947,966 1,959,670 10,507,636
PEP 36,683,956 80d, 655 37,544,044
45,631,058 2,819,728 48,451,688
BRI OR2AT4 166,541,741 BIBLRI4318
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: 2016
Advances
Investments (Note 20} Total
Associate -
Mont-Aire B38,350,619 £97.121,830 £135,472,449
Joint ventures:
Gamespan 8,647,960 1,956,670 10,907,636
PEP 32,775,249 611,415 33,380,664
41,723.215 2,571,085 44,294 300

280,073,834 09,692,915 P179,766,749

The associate and joint ventures are not listed in any public stock exchanges.

PP

On Apsil 16,2007, the Group and Summit Publishing, Co. entered into a sharsholder’s agreement for
the establishment of PEP. The joint venture was organized to design, conceptualize, operate and
maintain websites that make available all kinds of show business, entertainment and celebrity
information, video or pictures in the internet worldwide web oy other forms of seamless
communication.

The Group recognized its share in net carnings of PEP amounting to #3.91 million, #13.42 million
and £6.35 million in 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Gamespan :

On March 22, 2612, the Group, through GNMI, executed a Sharcholder’s Agreement with Manila
Jackey Club (MJC) for the establishment of Gamespan, a joint venture corporation, The joint venture
was organized to operate and manage the hardware and software owned by MJC, set-up new media
infrastructure for offering and taking bets in horse racing and other sports.

Gamespan has not started its commercial operations since its establishment. In 2014, the Group and
MIC agreed to terminate its shareholder’s agreement and to close Gamespan. As at December 31,
2020, the process of cessation of Gamespan is ongoing. Since Gamespan already ceased its
operations, the Group did not recognize any share in net earnings in 2020, 2019 and 2018,

ING7

Losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method in excess of the Group’s carrying value of
investment were applied against its advances to the Parent Company thereby reducing both
advances and investments to zero as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, INQ7 ceased operations in
2007, In 2013, INQ7 submitted a request to Hauidate its assets to SEC. The liquidation is still
ongoing as at December 31, 2020.

The Group believes that its interests in joint ventures are not individually material. Aggregate
information of joint ventures that are not individually material are as follows:

2029 2019 2018

The Group’s share in income /

total comprehensive income P3,908,740 P13,420,076 £6,351,690
Aggregate carrying value

of the Group's interests

and advances 48,451,681 44,294 300 30,847,681

IR Bl
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Mont-Aire
The table below shows the condensed financial information of Mont-Alre as at December 31, 2020
and 2019:

Current assets 259,665,203
Noncurrent assets 107.619.616

167,284,816
Current liabilities 1,066.320
Noncurrent liabilities 105,691 504

106,757,824
Net assets 60,526,995
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 49%
Carrying amouni of investment P29 658,228

Mont-Adre ceased its commercial operations in 2009, Assets include real estate and parcels of land
with an aggregate cost of P105.68 million and fair market value of £158.64 million, as determined by
an accredited appraiser as at June 3, 2019, enough to cover for the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in Mont-Aire. Management believes that there are no events or changes in circumstances
indicating a significant unfavorable change in the fair value of the abovementioned properties from
the last appraisal made.
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Construction in progress pertains to costs incurred for installation ot equipment, signal strengthening
of transmitters nationwide and construction/improvement of studios and stations in the regions.

The reclassification relates to the cost of low-value assets amounting te P0.16 million in 2019 and
software that were transferred fo other noncuyrent assets amounting to #6.32 million and
£0.15 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 13).

The Group leases out a portion of its property and equipment at cost. Total rental income recognized
for the leased portion amounted to #2.95 million, P4.11 million and £3.03 million in 2620, 2019 and
2018, respectively (see Note 25).

The Group disposed various property and equipment in 2020, 2019 and 2018 resulting to the
recognition of gain on sale amounting to 217.25 million, P18.79 million and P22.47 million,
respectively (see Note 25).

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, no property and equipment have been pledged as collateral or
security for any of the Group’s habilities. '

. Land at Revalued Amounts

The following are the details of this acceunt as at December 31, 2020 and 2019

Cost R350,617.345
Revaluation increment 2,443 378 839

P2 803,196,184

Land used in operations was last appraised on November 19, 2018 by an aceredited firm of appraisers
and is valued in terms of its highest and best uze, While the fair value of the land was not determined
as at December 31, 2020, the Group™s management believes that the fair values as at December 31,
2018 approximate the fair values as at December 31, 2020

The fair value was determined using the “Market Data Approach™ as determined by independent
professionally qualified appraisers. The fair value represents the amount that would be received to
sell the property in an orderly transaction between market participants at the date of valuation. The
description of valuation techniques used and key inputs 1o fair valuation are as follows:

Significant
Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range
Land Market comparable assets Price per square metre P200-R97.000

The fair value is categorized under Level 3 ofthe fair value hierarchy and represents the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in accordance with International Valuation Standards.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, no fand has been pledged as collateral or security for any of the
Group’s liabilities and the Group has no restrictions on the realizability of its land and no contractual
obligation fo purchase, construct or develop land or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.



14. Invesiment Properties

2020
Land and Buildings and
fmprovements Improvements Total
Cost: '
Balance at beginning and end of year £23,761,823 £72,276,684 £96,038,507
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning of year - 55,933,645 55,933,645
Depreciation during the year
{see Note 23) - 1,382,387 1,382,387
Balance at end of vear - 57,316,032 57,316,632
Accumulated impairment:
Balkance al beginning and
end of vear - 3,852,641 3,852,641
$23,761,823 £11,108,011 234,809,834
2019
Land and Buildings and
Improvements Improvements Totai
Cosl:
Balance at beginning of year P23.761, 823 P77.028.32% P100.790,144
Disposals — (4,751.637) (4,751,637)
Palance at end of vear 23,761,823 72,270,684 96,038,507

Accumulated depreciation:
Badance at heginning of vear = 56,933,519 56,933,519
Depreciation during the year

{see Note 23) - 1,421,877 1,421 877
Disposals (2,421.751) 2421751
Balance at end of year . 55,933,045 55,933,645
Accumulated impairment:
Balance at beginning and end of
yeur 3,852,641 3,852,641

Balance at end ol year B23.761.823

12,490,398

P£36,252.221

The Croup disposed investment properties in 2019 resuiting to the recognition of gain on sale
amounting to #2.58 million (see Note 25).

The Group recognized provision for impairment in value of certain investment properties amounting
to $£2.05 million in 2018. Management believes that the carrying values after impairment
approximate its receverable values,

The fair value of investment properties owned by the Group amounted to £203.90 million as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. The land was last appraised on November 19, 2018 by an accredited
appraiser and was valued in terms of its highest and best use. The fair value of the land was not
determined as at December 31, 2020, While the fair value of the fand was not determined as at
December 31, 2020, the Group’s management believes that the fair values as at December 31, 2018
approximate the fair valves as at December 31, 2020,

The fair valuc was determined using the “Market Data Approach”. The fair value represents the
amount that would be received 1o setl the property in an orderly fransaction between market
participants af the date of valuation.
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The description of the valuation techniques used and key inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Significant
Valuation Technique  Unobservable Inputs Range
Land Market comparable assets  Price per square metre £1,400-R3,500

Buildings for lease  Market comparable assets  Price per square metre  P22,000-P117,000
The fair value is categorized under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and represents the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

markel participants at the measurement date.

Rental income and the directly related expense arising from these Investment properties follow:

2026 2019 2018

Rental income {see Note 25) £3,945824 £4,450,061 B5.243.247
Depreciation expense (see Note 23) (1,382,387) {1.421.877) (2,255 88
£1,563,437 £3,028,184 B2,987,367

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, no investiment properties have been pledged as collateral or
security for any of the Group’s liabilities and the Group has no restriction on the realizability of its
investment properties and no contractual obligation Lo purchase. construct or devetop investment
properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements,

. OGther Nonecurrent Assets

20290 2019
Sottware costs BY7.071,541 P120,396,750
Restricted cash 472,348,999 42.445.046
Deferred input VAT 30,772,633 34,785,450
Refundable deposits 21,427,422 19,235,359
Advances to contractors 15,704,899 65,237,688
Investment in artworks 10,186,136 10,186,136
Guarantee deposiis 6,412,119 9,486,557
Development costs 5,767,800 5,767,800
Facilities 2,359,591 2,732,089
Deferred production costs 1,061,628 1,088,162
Ofthers 2,696,079 3,676,470

B235,808,847 £315,037,507

Software costs relate to software applications and website deveiopment costs which provide an edge
on the Group’s online presence and other software issues.

Restricted cash pertains to time deposits under the custody of the courts as a collateral for pending
Litigation.

Deferred mput VAT pertains to the VAT on the Group’s acquisitions of capital goods exceeding
£1.00 million in any given month which are to be amortized over the 60 months or the Iife of the

asset, whichever is shorter.

CGuarantee and other deposits consist of the Meralco refund and refundable rental deposits used for
Parent Company’s programs.
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Advances to contractors pertain to advance payments made by the Parent Company for the
construction of assets to be classified as property and equipment,

Investment in artworks are paintings and other works of art usualty displayed in the Parent
Company’s hallways,

Facilities relate to the paid deposit for facilities used for productions by the Group,

Deferred production costs pertain to the costs incurred in relation to the production of music compact
discs and are measured at cost upon recognition. Deferred production costs are being amortized as
the related compact discs are sold.

The movements in soltware costs follows:

2020 2019
Cost:
Bailance at beginning of year B451,769,256 P386,132,486
Additions during the year 14,616,139 65,484,770
Reclassifications during the year (see Note 12) 6,322,725 152,000
Balance at end of vear 468,708,120 451,769,256
Accumutated amortization:
Balance at beginning of year 331,372,506 304,584,117
Amortization during the year (see Note 23) 40,264,073 26,788,389
Balance at end of year 371,636,579 331,372,500

B97.071,541 120,396,750

16, Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities

2026 2019
Payable to government agencies " PL693,375,218 FO79 415,546
Trade payables 517,862,437 531,035,796
Customers’ deposits 41,685,087 53,328,199
Contract labilities (see Note 10) 35,908,512 127281915
Acerued expenses:
Utilities and other expenses 285,296,940 248,948,047
Payroll and talent fees {sec Note 26) 232,289 308 202,685,388
Production costs 67,809,420 168,964,614
Commission 44,859,071 38,736,098
Others 58,768,937 56,329,156

22.977,884,927 $£2.406,724,759

Payable to government agencies is composed of the Group’s statutory compensation-related
contributions to government agencies and net VAT and withholding taxes payable to the Bureau of
Internal Revenue (BIR). The difference between the accrual accounting under the accounting
standards and cash-basis accounting as prescribed by the BIR for service-related companies caused
the Group to normally incur deferred output VAT which forms a substantial part of the Group’s
payable to government agencies. These payables are remitted within 30 days atier reporting period.

Trade payvables to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on terms ranging from
seven to 60 days.
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Customers’ deposits include guaranty deposits from advertising agencies to secure payment of bills
by advertisers. These deposits are noninterest-bearing and normally refunded once the related
broadeasts are paid by the advertisers. It also includes deposits from the Group’s lessees upon
inception of the ease agreements.

Contract labilities pertain to payments received before broadcast and before delivery of goods and
services. These are recognized as revenue when the Group performs the obligation under the
contract. This account also includes contract Habilities of £22.00 million resulting from the sale of
the Group’s interests in X-Play in 2015 {see Note 10).

Accrued expenses and other payabies are noninterest-bearing and are generally settled within the next
financial year.

Others include unpaid subscriptions and retention payables. These are noninterest-bearing and are
normally settied within one year.

. Shori-term Loans

The Parent Company obtained unsecured short-term peso and US dollar-denominated {cans from
local banks in 2020 and 2019, Details and movements of the short-term loans are as follows:

2020 2019
Balance af beginning of yvear £4060,000,800 B506,000,000
Availments 984,340,606 1,517,500,000
Pavments (641,895.,860y  (1,017,500,000)
Revaluation (22,100,000}
Balance at end of year £720,345,600 £400.000,000

The outstanding loans as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 consist of fixed rate notes with the
following details:

Interest Raie

Londer  Currency Amounl {per annum) Terms 2020 2{HG
Avatted i 2020,
Cittbank  LISD 315,000,000 1.80% pavable in 182 days B720,345,000
Availed in 2020
L3P Peso P4OGL000,000 6.00% payable in 300 days - P0.000,000
Interest expense on peso denominated loans amounted to £4.33 million, $46.18 million and

£36.25 million in 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Interest expense on US dollar deneminated
loans amounted to B7.67 million, #10.78 miilien, and nil in 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively,

. Obligations for Program and Other Rights

Obligations for program and other rights represent liabilities to foreign and local fitm suppliers
for program and other rights purchased by the Group. Ouistanding unpaid balance as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to #176.18 million and £133.78 million, respectively.
Obligations for program and other rights are generally payable in equal monthly or quarterty
instaliments.
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19, Equity

a.

Capital Stock

Details of capital stock as at December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Preferved Common
Number of Number of
Shares  Peso Eguivalent Shares  Peso Equivalent

Authorized - 2020 par ,

value per preferred

share/B1.00 par value

per common share 7.500,000,000 P1.500,000,000  5,000,000,000 £5,000,000,000
Subscribed and issued 7.500.000.000 P1500,000,000  3,364,692,000 £3.364.692 000
Treasury shares 492 816 2R 563 3,645 000 23 645,000
Underiving shares of the
acquired PDRs P 750,000 P750.000

The cumulative preferred shares are of equal rank, preference and priority and are identical in all
respect regardless of series. Preferred shaves are participating at the rate of one fifth (1/5) of the
dividends paid (o common shares, the rate of which is adjusted proportionately by the Parent
Company’s BOD consequent to any stock split or stock dividend declaration affecting the
commaon shares and preferred shares. Preferred shares are convertible at the aption of the
shareholders at the ratio of five preferred shares to one common share, based on par value.

Preferred shares enjoy priority over common shares in the distribution of assets of the Parent
Company in the event of dissolution and liguidation, at such rates, terms and conditions as the
BOD may determine. Each preferred share is entitied to one vote and shali have the same voting
rights as the commaon shares,

The Parent Company’s BOD may specify other terms and conditions, qualifications, restrictions
and privileges of the preferred shares or series/classes thereof, insofar as such terms, conditions,
qualifications, restrictions and privileges ars not inconsistent with the articles of incorporation
and any applicable law or regulation,

The following summarizes the information on the Parent Company’s registration of securities
with the SEC which was approved on June 20, 2007, as required by Revised Securities
Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68:

Authorized and [ssue/Otffer

Securities issued shares Price

taitial public offering 91,346,000 P8.50

Underlying common shares of PDRs 945 432,000 8.50

Over-allofiment common shares 13,761,000 8.50
Common shares covering employee stock option

nlan 57,000,600 8.50

In prior years, the Parent Company has acquired 750,000 PDRs issued by GMA Holdings, Inc. at
acquisition cost of #5.79 miliien. In as much as each PDR share grants the hoider, upon payment
of the exercise price and subject to certzin other conditions, the delivery of one (1) Parent
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)

Campany share or the sale and delivery of the proceeds of such saie of Parent Company share,
such PDRs held by the Parent Company is being treated similar to a treasury shares,

b.  Retained BEarnings
The retained sarnings of the Parent Company is restricted lor the paynent of dividends to the
extent of #34.27 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, representing the cost of shares held
in treasury and underlying shares of the acquired PIXRs amounting to P28.48 million and

P5.79 million, respectively.

The Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of the following cash dividends:

Cash Dividend Total Cash
Year Declaration Date Record Date Per Share Dividend Declared
2020 June 8, 2820 June 24, 2020 £03.30 21,458,059, 531
2019 March 29,2019 April 22,2619 BG.45 22 187,089,297
2018  Aprii 5,2018 April 23,2018 B0.50 £2,430,099,220

The Parent Company’s outstanding dividends payable amounted to £19.89 million and
P18.73 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

On March 26, 2021, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration and distribution of
eash dividends amounting to £1.35 per share tofating £6,561.27 million to all stockhoiders of
record as at April 22, 2021 and wiil be paid on May (8§, 2021,

The balance of retained earnings inciudes Parent Company’s accumulated equity in net earnings
of subsidiaries and associates which are not currently available for dividend declaration until
declared by the respective subsidiaries and associates amounting to #103.05 million and
£2140.06 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

20. Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered te be related if they are subject to common control. Related
parties may be individual or corporate entities.

The Parent Company has an approval requirement such that material retated party transactions
{RP7Ts) shall be reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee (the Committee} and
submitted to the BOD for approval. Material RPTs are those transactions that meet the threshold
value amounting to ten percent {14%) or higher of the Company’s total consolidated assets based on
its latest audited financial statements either individually, or in aggregate over a twelve (12}-month
period with the same related party.

Ouistanding balances at year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash throughout the
financial year. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables
or payables. For years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group has not recorded any
impairment of receivables on amounts ewed by the related parties. The assessment is undertaken
each financial year through examining the financial position of the refated party and the market in
which the related party operates.
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In the ordinary course of business, the Group transacts with associate, affiliates, joint venture and
other related parties on advances, reimbursement of expenses, and future stock subscriptions.

The transactions and balances of accounts as at and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
with related parties are as follows:

Amount/
Account Name and Volume of
Category Related Party Year  Transactions Receivables Terms Conditions
Advances (see Note 1) Associate:
Mont-Aire 220 POOO186 977220106 Nonmierest- iInsccured;
G B, 104,799 97121830 bearing not impaired
Joink venteres:
Gamespan 2020 b 1,959,670 Nomnterest- tnsceured:
WG - 1959070 bearing o impadred
PP 2024 248,648 460,085 Noninterest- Linsecured,
201G 26,543 611415 i nos bnpaired
N7 H20 - 11,544,000 Unsecured:
2019 11,544 000 fully impaired
Total 2020 P48, 820 112,085,741
2009 8,131,342 11,236 915
Nontrade Receivables
Reimbursable charges Common
fsee Note 7] steckholders:
GMA Kapuse 2020 #1,167,0642 £3,361,550  On demand, Unsecurad;
Foundanon ne. 20104 2 000000 2,194 50 nontmterest- nob mpaired
bearing
l.egal, consulting and Belo, Gozon, Flma 2026 13,711,855 - OUndemand, insecured:
retatners” fees [Law 2089 14,017,565 noninteresi- not impaired
bearing
Fotal 2020 214,878,057 £3,361,550
219 16,017 365 2 194 568

The advances made by the Parent Company to Mont-Aire and PEP are intended for future capital
subscription. On the other hand, the advances to INQ7 were fully impaired as a result of the
application of the Group’s share in the losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method in excess
of the Group’s carrying value of investiment,

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The compensation of key management personnel of the Group, by benefit type, are as follows:

2026 2019 2018

Salaries and other jong-term
benefits {see Notes 23 and 24) P913,763,843 B711,908,901 B568,481,703
Pension benefits
{see Notes 23 and 24) 165,255,983 95,819,977 89,810,201
B1,078,959.82¢ P807.728,878 P658,300,904

Pension benefits under OCH amounted to P434.32 million, #171.62 million and #163.45 million as of
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Fquity Investments of the Retirement Fund

The Group’s retirement Tund includes equity investments in GMA Network, Inc. and GMA PDRs
amounting to 241,78 million and P33 1.39 million in 2020, respectively, and P37.12 millien and
£295.19 million in 2019, respectively (see Note 26).
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21, Revenues

Set out below is the disaggregaiion of the Group’s revenues from contract with customers for the year

ended December 31

2024 2019 2048
Revenue source
Sale of service
Addverlising revenue RI7,727.404.801 £15,173,925,007 $£13,834,535,108
Subscription revenue (see Note 27) 911,005,081 1,056,700.874 1,164,342 535
Revenue (rom distribution and content provisioning 63,653,634 89,350,710 109,457 682
Praduction revenue 49,947 752 173,475,621 131,857,044
Sale of goods 583,794,170 : -
Fotal revenue from contracts with customers £19,335,895,538 £10.493,452.212 £15,236,192,369
Geographical markets
Local PIRIL968,786 £I5288293.657 £13.934.435792
[nternational 1,023.926,832 1,203,158.555 1.301,736.577
Fotal revenue from contracts with customers £19,335,895,538 P16,493,452,212 £15236,192.369
Fiming of revenue recognition
Goods/services transterred at a point in time #i8,424,890,457 £15.436,751.338 P14,073.849.834
Services transferred over time 911,605,081 1,056,700,874 1,160,342,535
Total revenae from contracts with customers £19,335,895,538 $16,493,452.212 £15,236,192,369
22. Produaction Costs
2024 2019 2018
Talent fees and production personnel costs
{see Note 24) P1,705,667.865 P2.947.995,874 P2 992,043,969
Program and other rights usage
{see Note 8) 703,415,807 988,703,737 871,451,221
Facilities and amortization of production services 460,116,613 RI18.967,334 £26,000,133
Rental (see Note 27) 216,239,334 812,006,080 893,795,347
Dxepreciation (sce Notes 12 and 23) 164,639,078 168,170,547 202,301,442
Tapes, sets and production supplies 142,401,105 533,463,632 539,520,779
Trangportation and communication 65,658,557 163,846,561 156,530,203
£3,452,138,329 £6,435,153,765  £6,483.703,064
23. General and Administrative Expenses
2020 2019 2018
Personnel costs (see Note 24) £4,525,161,340 24,127, 118,304 $£3,284.815,334
Dyepreciation {see Notes 12, 14 and 27) 380,936,123 409,533,900 384,087,457
Provision for ECL {see Note 7) 347,195,883 18,297,347 109,631,001
Professional fees 305,734,976 202,048,149 184,332,966
Communication, light and water 2I5 051,327 317,381,955 340,696,239
Taxes and licenses £82,104,942 174,361,923 192,819,834
Repairs and maintenance 144,785,132 173,414,414 §25.012,025
Research and surveys 98,769,435 66,103,888 81,418,243
Advertising 84,866,697 257,877,219 223,861,267
Software maintenance 81,430,010 78,875,726 60,315,430

(Forward)
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2020 2019 2018

Facilities related expenses £69,849,171 P64,498.251 £65,317.563
Seeurity services 66,865,570 69,686,464 08,412.301
Marketing expense 55,136,499 87.255.502 99,870,405
Transportation and travel 54,407,006 57.432.440 58,150,821
Amortization of software costs {see Note 15) 40,264,073 26,788,389 23,173,607
Insurance 29,028,379 31,241,235 29,254 674
Janitorial services 22,863,052 25,805.53; 22,612,232
Materials and supplics 12,525,485 17,505,157 19,815,382
Rental (see Note 273 9,603,762 11,967,504 31,347,081
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 8,452,628 13,195,672 (3,454,014
Ducs and subscriptions 8,234,093 8,382,407 7534012
Freight and handling 6,092,430 6,413,072 7,691,224
Others 85,499,998 80270317 80,520,088
£6,847.818.011 P6,325.456,794 £35,514.342.920

i

Others include expenses incurred for messengerial services, other manpower, donations and other

miscellaneous expenses.

Depreciation
J028 2019 2018
Property and equipment (see Note 12)
Production costs (see Note 22) BI64.639,078  Pi68,170,347 P202,361.,442
General and administrative expenses 351,775,781 377,448,970 381.831,577
516,414,859 543619517 584,193,019
Right-o{-use assets (see Note 27}
General and administrative expenses 27,777 858 3066308 -
[nvestment properties {sce Note 14)
Cienerad and administrative expenses 1,382,387 1,421 877 2,253 880
£545,575,201 PST7,704,447  BSR6.448 899
24, Personnel Costs
2024} 2019 2018
Salaries and wages P2.578,012,608 22305819824 #1,993.485,463
Talent lees 1,687.514.239 2.862,447.231 2,922.326,94)
Employee benefits and atlowances 1,245.873,978  1,346,6069,079 932,500,288
Pension expense (see Note 26) 646,198,143 402 208,767 312,489,341
Sick and vacation leaves expense 143,170,237 157.968.277 116,057,271
£6,230,769,265 P7075,114,178 £0,276.859,303

The above amounts were distributed as follows:

2020

2019

2018

Production costs (see Note 22)

Generad and administrative expenses (see Note 23)

£1,705,667,863
4,525,101,340

$2,947.995,874
4,127,118.304

£2,992,043,969
3.284 815.334

£6,230,769,205

P7075,114,178

$6,276,859,303
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25. Others - Net

2020 2019 2018
Commission from Artist Center P45,128,337 £41,633,736 237,094 499
Net gain on sale of property and equipment and
investment properties (see Notes 12 and 14) 17,250,932 21,368,209 19,829,189
VAT difference on sales to government per Revenue
Regulations 16-2005 10,218,187 6,701,064 -
Rental income (see Notes {2, 1dand 273 6,894,304 8,561,148 8,269,926
dMerchandising Hicense fees and others 2,549,637 8,651,427 12,552,190
Bank charges (1,411,850 £2.281.,842) (1,940,697}
Others 4,545,220 3,132,824 3,308,782

£85,174,767 P87,766,500 B79.113.895

Merchandising license fees and others include income from mall shows, sale of DVDs and integrated
recetver decoders and dividend income {see Note 10).

. Pension and Other Employee Benefits

As at December 31, pension and other employee benefits consist of:

2620 2019
Pension labtlity B4.915,125,689 £2,733,593,128
Vacation and sick leave accrual 355,988,220 341,479,883

5,271,113,909 3,075,073,011

Less current portion of vacation and sick leave
accrual® , 6,285,766 5,078,843
Pension and other long-term employee benefits B5,264,828.143  P3.069,994,168

Hrctuded in " Acoried expenses” wnder Trade pavables and otfrer coreent Hahifities (see Note 16,

Pension Benefits
The Group operates non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans,

Under the existing regulatory framework, R.A. 7641 reguires a provision for retirement pay to
qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided
however that the empleyee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other
agreements shali not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require minimum
funding of the plan.

Pension benefits recognized in the statements of comprehensive income are as follows (see Note 24):

2020 2019 2018
Current service cost P438,234,725 234,746,730 P216,272,094
Past service cost - - 8,713,551
Net interest cogt 367,963,418 167,463 037 %7.503.696

£646,198,143  £402,209.767 312,489,341
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Net pension liability recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position is as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Present value of defined benelit obligation B6,359,224,651  £23,984,474,73% £3,180.957.326
Fair value of plan assely 1,444 098,402  1.230,881,611 997,963 191
Pension linbility P4.915,125,689 £2733,593,128 £2.182.994 135

The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2026 2019 2018

Balance al beginning of year $£3,984.474,739  #3,180.957.326 £2,531.456,670
Current service cost 438,234,725 234,746,730 216272004
Interest cost 306,876,971 242 805,975 136,667,808
Past service cost - - 8,713,551
Benelits paids

FFrom plan assets (189,229,662  (110.958,955)  (148.327,656)

From Group’s own funds (9.686.893) (7.955,884) {(48.311,18%)
Remeasurement losses (gaing):

Changes in financial assumptions 1,536,340,215 778,107,846 (448,513,200)

Changes in demographic assumptions {16,076,998) 19.038,199

Experience adjustiment 308,290,994 (333,228,299} 913,961,039
Balance at end of year $6,359,224,091  £3,984,474,739 £3,180.957.326

The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Balunce af beginning of year P1,250.888,611 B997.563,191 BRG1.269 486
Contribution during the year 259,000,060 206,448 811 279,003 770
Interest income 98,913,553 73,342,938 49 164,112
Benetits paid (189,225,662) {110,958,955) (148,327,656}
Remeasurement gain {loss) - return on plan assets 24,532,900 22,085,626 (43,176,521)
[Balance at end of vear £1,444 098,402 £1.250.881.611 997 963 191

Remeasurement toss on retirement plans amounting ic #1,261.62 million, #300.70 million and
2367.20 million reported under the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in 2020, 2019
and 2018 is presented net of deferred tax.

At each reporting period, the Group determines its contribution based on the performance of its
retirement fund.

The Group expects to coniribute 290.00 million to the fund in 2021

The funds are managed and supervised by trustee banks for the benefits of the members. However,
the general administration ofthe funds is vested in a Retirement Comimittee,
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The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair vaiues of the plan assets:

2020 2019

Carrying Carrying

Value/Fair ¥alue Value/Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents P41,228,384 P1G7.432,706
Equity instruments (see Note 20}): ’

GMA PDRs 331,387,630 295,185,620

GMA Networle, Tnc. 41,784,000 37,118,120

Debt instruments -

Govermnment securities 668,129,819 614,159,861

Unit investment Trust Funds (UITFs) 361,468,966 105,319,599

Others 90,603 1,665,705

£1,444,098,402  Pi,250,881.611

The plan assets consist of the following:

e Cash and cash equivalents consist of regular savings and time deposits.

= Investments in equity instruments consist of lsted shares of GMA Network, Inc. and GMA PDRs
{see Note 20). Changes in the fair market value of these investments resulted to #23.95 million
gain in 2020, #16.91 million loss in 2019 and $44.23 million toss in 2018,

= Investments in debt instruments bear interest ranging from 5.40% to 6.30% and have maturities
from January 2021 to July 203 1. Equity and debt instruments held have quoted prices in active
market,

= [nvestment in UiTFs are measured at their net asset value per unit amounting to £255.39 and
R227.39 as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

w  Others consist of foans and receivables which are collectible within the next twelve months.

The person who exercises voling rights over shares is within the powers of the Trustee, who do not
have any relationship with the divectors or officers of the Group.

The plan assets are primarily exposed to financial risks such as tiquidity risk and price risk.

Liquidity risk pertains to the plan’s abifity to meet its obligation o the employees upon retirement.
To effectively manage liquidity risk, the Board of Trustees invests at least the equivalent amount of
actuariatly computed expected compulsory retirement benefit payments for the vear o liquid/semi-
liquid assets such as treasury notes, freasury bills, and savings and time deposits with commercial
banks. '

The Group performs an Asset-Eiability Matching Study (ALM) annually. The principal technique of
the Group’s ALM in order to minimize the portfolic liquidation risk is to ensure that the expected
return on assets will be sufficient to support the desired level of funding arising from the defined
benefit plans,

Price risk pertains mainly to fluctuations in market prices of equity securities listed in the Philippine
Stock Exchange. In order to effectively manage price risk, the Board of Trustees continuously
assesses these risks by closely monitoring the market value of the securities and implementing
prudent investment strategies.

However, In the event a benefit claim arises under the retivement plan and the retirement fund is not

sufficient to pay the benefit, the unfunded portion of the claim shall immediately be due and payable
to the retirement fund from the Greoup.
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The principal assumptions used in determining pension liability for the Group’s plans arc shown

below:

2020

2049

2018

[Discount rate

Expected rate of salary increase

Turn-over rates:

19-24 vears old
25-2G years old
3034 years oid
35-39 years old
4G-44 vears oid
=45 years old

3.10-7.70%
4.00-5.00%

7.26-9.48%
5.56-7.88%
3.70-6.14%
2.69-4.22%
2.00-3.81%
0.00-3.05%

4.13-7.70%
1.44-5.00%

4.00-36.00%
6.00-70.00%
4.40-24.00%
2.00-12.60%
2.00-10.00%

£.30-2.00%

7.09-7.70%
2.3-5.00%

7.26-32.00%
5.56-25.50%
3.23-20.00%
0.00-8.00%
0.00-6.50%
0.00-8.25%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined by remeasuring the defined benefit obligaticn at
the reporting period after first adjusting one of the current assumption that were reasonably possible
at the valuation date while all other assumptions remained unchanged. [t should be noted that the
changes assumed to be reasonably possible af the valuation date are open o subjectivity, and do not
consider more complex scenarios in which changes other than those assumed may be deemed to be
more reasonable.

f

Increase
{Decrease) in Increase (Decrease) in Defined Benefit Obligation
RBasis Points 2020 20149 2018
Discount rate 30 (£320.849,879) (190,958 480 {£151,033,648)
(30} 348,403,037 202,730,781 163,215,384
Fulure salary increases 50 346,062,010 210,769,378 106,759.223
: (50 (321818,767)  (194,862.800) (155,480,126)

Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as at December 31, 2020:

f.ess than one year

Moare than 1 year to 3 years
More than 3 years to 7 years
More than 7 years to 135 years
More than 15 years to 20 years
More than 20 years

521,350,603
1,809,583,335
2,355,852,639
3.775,201,107
4,862,907,624
8.284,687.763

Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

Other long-term employee benefits consist of accumulated and unexpired employee sick and vacation
ieave entitlements. Nencurrent portion of other employee benefits amounted to $349.70 millien and
£336.40 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, while current portion of other
employee benefits recorded in “Accrued payroll and talent fees” included under *“Trade and other
current liabilities™ account amounted to 26.29 mitlion and 235,08 million as at December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively (see Note 16},
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27. Agreements

Lease Agreements

Starting January |, 2019 - Upon adoption of PFRS 16

Group as a Lessee

The Group entered into various lease agreements for land, building, studio and office spaces that it
presently occupies and uses for periods ranging frem two to 12 years. The lease agreements can be
renewed subject to mutual agreement. Most of the lease agreements can be terminated at the option
of the Group while the termination option in the lease agreements of NMI, a subsidiary is subject 1o
mutual agreement. Previously, these leases were classified as operating leases under PAS 17, Leases.

The Group also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Group applies the
“short-term lease” recognition exemptions for these leases.

The rottforward analysis of right-of-use assets follows:

2028
Right-of-use:
Right-of-use: Buildings, studio Right-of-use:
Land and office spaces Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P44,553,476 65,911,763 P166,465,239
Pre-termination {18,203,671) (18,283,671
Balance at the end of year 94,553,476 47,708,092 142,261,568
Accumuiated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 16,797 383 13,865,670 30,663,053
Depreciation {see Note 23) 12,001,535 15,776,420 27,777,955
Pre-termination - (5,447,716} (5,447.716)
Bulance at the end of vear 28,798,918 24,194,374 52,993,292
MNet Book Value P65,754,558 P23.513,718 £89,268,276
2019

Right-of-use:
Land

Right-of-use:

Buitdings, studio and

office spaces

Right-ol-use:
Total

Cost

Balance at beginning of year

Additions

270,667 431
23,886,045

P28.320,921
37,590,842

P9E.O88,352
61,476,887

Balance al the end of vear

94,553,470

65,911,763

160,463,239

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at beginning of vear

Depreciation {see Note 23)

16,797,383

13,865,670

30,663,053

Balance al end of vear

16,797 383

13,865,670

30.663 4133

Net Book Value

P77.736,093

P52 040,093

P125,802, 186
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The rollforward analysis of lease iabilities follows:

2026 2019

Balance at beginning of year BI05,788, 1158 P066,535,587
Additions - 53959212
Accretion of interest 5,817,214 6,987,979
Payments (21,762,363} {21.694,663)
Pre-termination {12,986,4994) —
Balance at end of year 276,856,072 2105,788.115
228 2019

Current portion P10,485,295 P18.268.746
Noncurrent portion 66,370,777 87.519.369
Balance at end of year 276,856,072 B105,788,115

The rollforward anafysis of dismantling provision follows:

2420 2019

Balance at beginning of year $42,392,195 B32.452,765
Additions - 7,517,685
Accretion of interest 2,581,215 2.421,745
Balance at end of year P44,973,410 P42 392,195

The following are the amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

2020 2019

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assels

{(see Note 23) B27,777,955 B30,663,053
Interest expense on lease Habilities 5,817,214 6,987,979
Interest expense on dismantling provision 2,581,215 2,421,745
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in

“Production costs™) (see Note 22} 210,239,334 812,006,880
Expense relating to short-term leases

{included in “General and Administrative

expenses”) (see Note 23) 9,603,762 11,967,504

Shown below is the maturtiy analysis of the undiscounted lease payments;

2420 2019
1 year P15,553,271 P17.387.545
more than | year to 2 years 14,079,568 13989811
more than 2 years to 3 years 12,759,983 13,760,554
more than 3 years to 4 years 16,992,270 50,831,950
More than S years 45,501,281 T7.864,795

Also, in June 2012, the Parent Company agread to extend its non-cancailable Co-preduction/
Blocktime Rental Agreement with ZOE Broadcasting Network, Inc. (ZBN) for ancther

seven {7) vears from June 2012 to May 2019, On the first year of the contract renewal, the Parent
Company shall pay ZBN an amount equivalent to total payments from June 2011 to May 2012,
subject to yearly escalation of 10.00%. The agreement has ended in May 2019, The rental expense
recognized on the agreement with ZBN amounted to B77.03 million in 2019,
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Total rental expense on short-term leases amounted to £219.84 million and #746.94 miliion in 2020
and 2019, respectively (see Notes 22 and 23).

Group as Lessor. The Group leases out certain properties for a peried of one year, renewable
annually. The leased-out properties include investment properties, and broadcasting equipment.
Total rental income amounted to £6.89 mitlion and 8,56 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively (see
Note 25),

Prior to January 1. 2019 - Prior to adoption of PFRS 16

Operating Lease Commiiments - Group as Lessee. The Group entered into various lease agreements
for the land, building, studio spaces and airtime that it presently occupies and uses for pertods ranging
from three to twenty five years. The jeases are canceliable at the Group’s option.

The Group's other fease arrangements consist of short-term leases, renewed on a need basis.
Total rental expense on amounted to #927.34 million 2618 (see Nates 22 and 23).

Operating Lease - Group as Lessor. The Group also leases out certain properties for a period of one
year, renewable annually. The leased out properties include investment properties and broadcast
equipment. Total rental income amounted to £8.27 million in 2018 (see Note 25).

Subscription Agreements

The Parent Company entered into various subscription agreements with interpational cable providers
for the airing of its programs and shows abroad. The agreements generatly have terms of three to five
vears and are based on certain agreed service package rates.

Total subscription revenue amounted to P91 1.00 million, P1,056.7¢ million and #1,160.34 million in
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively {see Note 21).

Purchase Agreement for Set-top Boxes

In 2020, the Parent Company entered into several contracts with Ablee Electronic Company Limited
for the supply of sei-top boxes with complete accessories. Total purchases in 2020 amounted to
P8OG.RO million. As at December 31, 2020, total advances for set-top boxes to be delivered in 2021
amounted to #566.80 million (see Note 9).

+

. Encome Taxes

Current {ncome Tax
The current income tax consists of the foilowing:

2020 2019 2018
RCIT ’ £2,728,600,117 RL200,771,887 P1,056,837.800
MCIT 50,423 6,250 16. 100

£2, 728,650,540 £1,2060,778,143  P1,056,853,906
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The recanciliation between the statutory income tax rates and effective income tax rates are shown
below:

2020 2019 2018
Statutory income tax 30.00% 30.00% 36.00%
Additions (deductions) in income tax
resulting from:
Interest income already subjected to final tax {0.03) {0.18) (G319
Nondeductible interest expense 030 0.05 0.07
Nondeductible tax deficiency payment - 0.06 0.37
Others - net 0.3
Effective income fax 30.08% 29.93% 30.25%

Deferred Taxes
The components of the Group’s net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2026 2019

Deferred tax assets:

Pension hability £1,473,563,571 £819,935.351

Alowance for ECL 227,801,136 164,181,742
Other long-term employee benefits 104,910,736 100,860,733
Accrued expenses 30,265,904 33,314,129
Lease liabilities 22,706,164 31,736,435
Intercompany sale of mtangible assets £8,000,300 22,500,000
Dismantling provision 13,492,023 12,717,658
Contract liabilities 10,772,854 38172487
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 8,213,125 9,085,334
Allowance for probable losses in advances 8,187,320 8.161,268
Unamortizad past service cost 7,862,147 3,126,052
Unrezlized oss on financial assets at FVOCI 6,218,787 2,59921 ]
NOLCO 298,058 -
Excess MCIT over RCIT 22,619 41,186
1,932,254,144 1,246,431,586
Deferred tax liabilities:
Revaluation increment on land (733,073,652 (733,073,652)
Right-of-use assets {26,460,544) 38,940,656
{759,534,192) (772,014,308)
£1,172,719,952 474 417278

The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) pertaining to accounts presented under equity in
the consolidated statements of financial position are as follows:

2020 2019
Revaluation increment on land (B733,073,652y (P733,073,652)
Pension liabifity - remeasurement foss
on retirement plan 677,677,431 128,870,460
Revaluation of financial assets at FVOC] 7,862,147 2,59921}%
(47,534,074 (Po01,603.981)
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The components of the subsidiaries’ deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of
NOLCO and MCIT, for which no deferred tax assets have been recognized in the Group’s

consolidated statements of financial position, are as follows:

2020 2019

NOLCO £16,038,762 B6,131,646
Alowance for ECL 7,181,194 2,367,129
Allowance for inventory stock 6,978,287 6,978,286
Pension liability 3,447,119 475,201
Unamortized past service cost 577,523 92.404
Excess MCIT over RCIT 64,334 67,295
Other long-term employee benefits - 198,597
Others 102,383 37,362
' 228,389,602 B16,348,010

The unrecognized deferred fax assets from the above deductible temporary differences and
carryforward benefits o NOLCO and MCIT amounted to B8.56 million and £4.95 million as at

December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The deferred tax assets were not recognized as management believes that future taxable income
against which the deferred tax assels can be used for these entities may not be available.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s MCIT is as follows:

Years Paid/incurred  Carryforward Benefit Up To

MCIT

2018 2024
2019 2022
2020 2023

P7,501
28.875
50,577

P86,953

On September 30, 2020, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations No. 25-2020 implementing Section
4(b) of “Bayanihan to Recover As One Act” which states that the NOLCO incurred for taxable years
2020 and 202! can be carried over and claimed as a deduction from gross income for the next five (5)
consecutive taxable vears immediately following the year of such loss.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group has incurred NOLCO before taxable year 2020 which can be
claimed as deduction from the regular taxable income for the next three (3) consecutive taxable years,

as follows:

Applications Applications
Year Avaiiment in previous in the current  Unapplied
incurred period Amount year/s Expirations year NGOLCO
2017 2018 to 2020 P776,438 B~ B776,438 P B
2018 2019 to 2021 3,626,616 9,757 - 490,824 3,126,035
2019 202010 2022 2,73137m - - - 2731377
P7,134,431 29757  £776.438 P490,824 P5.857.412

AR



As at December 31, 2020, the Company has incurred NOLCO in taxable year 2020 which can be
claimed as deduction from the regular taxable income for the next five (5} consecutive taxable years
pursuant to the Bayanihan to Recover as One Act, as tollows:

Applications Applications
Year Availment in previous in the current  Unapplied
incurred peried Amount vear/s  Expirations year NOLCO
2020 2021 t0 2025 P5,174,877 p— P P-  P5,174,877

29. EPS Computation
The computation of basic and diluted EPS follows:

2020 2019 2018

Net income altributable o cquity holders of

the Parent Company (4) £5,984,584,939 27 618,460,706 £2.304,793.288

Less attrthutuble to preterred sharcholders 1,846,897,337 RO8,080,787 711,280,168
Net inceme attributabie (@ common cquity

hlders of the Parent Company {b) £4,137,6587,602 21 810370919 P1593313,119
Commuon shares msacd i the begimning of

yoar {MNote 1) 3,364.692,000 3.364.692 000 3,364.692,000
Treasury shares (Note 19) (3,645,060) (3,645 000 (3,645,008
Underlying shares on acquired PDRs

(Notw 19} {750,004 (750,800) {750,000
Weighicd average number of common shares

for basic FPS (¢} 3.360,297,600 3,360,297.000 3,360,297 000
Weightad average number of common shares 3,360,297.004, 3,360,297 000 3 360,297 003

I et of diution - assumed conversion of

preferred shares 1.5040,006,006 1,500,000,000 1.500,000,000
Reacguired preferred shares {98,563) (98,563) {98.563)
Weighted average number ol common shares

adiusted Tor the etfect of dilution (d) 4,860,198 437 4 860,198 437 4 860,198 437
Basic EPS (bic) £1.231 1#0.33¢ P(}.474
Diluted 145 (a/d) #1.231 P53G 10,474

30. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments includes raising financing for the Group’s operatiens and managing
identified financial risks. The Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other
receivables, refundable deposits, trade payables and other current liabilities (exciuding payable to
government agencies, customers’ deposits, contract labilities, and advances from customers}, short-
term loans, obligations for program and other rights, dividends payable, other long-term employce
benefits and lease liabilities, which arise directiy from its operations, and financial assets at FVOCL
The main risks arising from the use of financial instruments are liquidity risk, foreign currency
exchange risk and credit risk. The Group is not exposed to interest rate risk as most of Hs financial
agsets and financial liabilities have fixed rates.

The BOD reviews and approves the Group’s objectives and policies.

’
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Liquidity Risk. The Group is exposed to the possibility that adverse changes in the business
environment and/or its operations would resutt in substantially higher working capital requirements

and subsequently pose difficulty in financing the additional working capital.

The Group manages liquidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations to meet its
shore-term fiquidity needs. The Group likewise regularly evaluates other financing instruments and
arrangements to breaden the Group’s range of financing sources.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group's financial assets and financial
Hiabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments as at December 31

2020

Eess than

More than

On Bemand 3 sonths 3 te 12 Months 1 year Total
Financial agsels at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents B2,802 545,281 $£322,271.983 - - P3,214817 204
Trade receivablies:
Telev ision and radio '
airtime 2 455,964,077 TATE 64764 - - 9.934,604,841
Subscriplions 162,802,287 84,098,769 - — 246,%1,056
Others #2,281,529 46,624,618 - - 128,876,147
Nontrade receivables:
Advances 1o officers and
employees 1,636,162 8,230,704 - - 6,866,860
(Ohers 84,639,393 64,649,192 - - 149,288,785
Refundable deposits™® — - - 21,427,422 28,427,422
Financial assets at FVOCE — - - (92,132,088 EY2,132,088
) 5,679,838,924 3,001.516,030 = 213,559,310 13,894, 914,469
Loans and borrowings:
Trade payables and other
current Habilibiey™* 541,916,369 648,035,317 16,564,424 - 1,266,916,1 80
Shori-term foang - T2G,TAE, 190 - - T2 T4, 190
Obligations for program and
other rights — 73.369,390 12,812,738 - 176,182,128
Lease Habititicg® #* - 4,208,629 12,032,002 83,333,102 99,573,733
Uhvidends payable 19,804,437 — — 19, 8494,437
261,810,800 §,446,354,526 131,869,164 83,333,102 2,223,.307,598
Liquidity Portion (Gap} £5,118,028,123 BH,555,161,504 (£131,809,164) 130,226,408 £11,671,606,87%
S nodndod wnder COher ronciirrent usseis™ geoount in the consolidated stafoenent of financial pasition fyee Nore 13,

v hiuding puvahle fo gavernment agercies, conirae fabifities and casiomer deposits amouning fo P21,683.38 nillion,
PRIT mitines ond P10 million, respectively (see Mot 10}

FREC Loy coniracitial papmeniy,

2019
Less than More than
On Demand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months 1 year Total
Financial assets at amortized cost ,
Clash and cash eguvalents PEEIZ 507,801 24072 463,855 - B— P2254 971656

Trade veceivables:
Televigion and radio
airtime

1, 084,175,730 30664972758 - 4,749,148 494
Subscriptions 233,691 355 an 33221 - 330,223,573
Others 110,679 514 38,987,974 L9667 488
MNontrade recervables:

Advances Lo officers
and employees 59138090 5,913 890
Orthers 2003237 191,271 - 2,194 508
Retundable deposns® - - 19,235,359 19,235,359
Financial assels at FVQOQCT - - 243 437 060 243 433 060
3,283.057.643 4223 148 076 3.913.860) 262,668 410 7774788 (128

{Forvard)
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2019
Less than Muore than
On Demand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months I year Tonal
Loans and hortowings:
Trade pavables and other
current Habilities™* PS60,644 264 2064 ,935 106 £21,119,729 o #1246.609 099
Short-term foang*** - 404 333 333 - 404 333 333
Obligations for program and
other rights - 133,784,154 : 133,784 154
{ease [abilities® ** - L 268251 22,002,611 112,631,542 135,902 404
579378 273 1,204 320 844 43,122,340 i12,631.542 1,939,452 998
Liguidily Portion (Gap) P2.703,679,371 PIOIER2T2I2 (37 208 450) BIS0.036,877  P3,835333.030

*efucteed wirdor CHRer Rorcurreat dseeis ' gocomid in e comsolidired stufenest of finaaciol pasition {vee Mote 1)

) veluding puvable fo government agencies, contract uhitities and custoiner deposits aatowmting fo PY79.42 million,
PI27.28 miflion and 123333 million, respectively (see Nope 16).

RSNy comiraci el puyinents,

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of
future cash flows of a financial mstrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange risk resuits from certain
business transactions denominated in foreign currencies. 1t is the Group’s policy to ensure that
capahilities exist for active but conservative management of its foreign currency exchange risk.

The Group’s foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are as follows:

20240 2019
Asgsets

Cash and cash cquivatents $14,428,0600 BGOZT,E32,539 $7.179.428 P363,530.337
CSESE5.837 56,692,289 ($596.,756 23,103,528
Trade receivables $4,298,851 206,286,757 $1.823,154 92,315,394
0%1,392,382 52075098 C§1,235.455 280,044,657
S$1E3,726 1,107,778 S$16.936 634,931
A836,854 1,341,474 A$202 851 7,152,526
PHES2, 170 ' 682,387 DI132,843 1,835,800
¥ - ¥ 10,738,238 4.970.730
£1,614,018,319 P773,587,993

Liabilities
Short-term loans S15,000,000 £720,345,000 $- B
Trade payables $2.891,699 138,859,374 1.U83.401 54.858,010
ETLOTY 684,924 e -
Obligations lor program and other rights 52,892,613 138,903,262 2171343 1049,945953
POYRE,TOLE60 P64 803,963
B15,225,75% 2647 770,044

In translating the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and ltabilities into Philippine peso
amounts, the exchange rate used were 248.02 to USE1.00 and P350.74 to USS1.00, the Philippine peso
to 1.5, dollar exchange rate, as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The exchange rate for
Philippine peso to Canadian dollar was #3740 to CADS1.00 as at Decemnber 31, 2020, The peso
equivalents for the Singaporean Dollar, Japanese Yen, Australian Dollar, Dirham and Euro are
P36.12, P0.46, B36.40, P13.08, and £58.69 respectively as at December 31, 2020,
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax from reporting
period up to next reporting period {due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and habilities).
There is no impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting profit or loss,

iffect on Income before fneome Fax

Apprecialion/
{Bepreciation)

af Peso USH CAD G0 AUD AET EPY ELR Fotal
2020 186 B1L,036534  (BLASL10N (56,463} (BLEA2T) (B26,085) #— 5,435 {313,145}
(0507 {1,036,534) 1,444,109 56,803 18,427 26,085 - (5,4535) 513,115

2049 080 (PREEIO03) (P3YLE,100) (PEABRY  (PLOLA26) (BO6.422)  (P3309.119) P

LR 2363995 3913506 8,468 1033,420 (300,422 33690149

Credit Risk, Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defauiting, is controlled by the application of
credit approvats, limits and monitoring procedures. 1t is the Group’s policy to enter into fransactions
with a diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group ensures that sales of products and services are made 1o customers with appropriate credit
history. The Group has an internal mechanism to monitor the granting of credit and management of
credit exposures. The Group has made provisions, where necessary, for potential losses on credits
extended. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of the instruments. The Group does not require any
collateral for its financial assets, thus, maximum exposute to credit risk is equal to the canying value
of the financiat instruments.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the coniponents of the consolidated
financial position as at December 3 1:

2028 2019
Financial assels at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents® #2,557,264,071 P1,988,824.410
Trade receivables:
Television and radio airtime 9,934,604,841 4,749,148,494
Subseriptions 246,901,650 330,223,573
Others $28.876,147 169,667 488
Nontrade receivables:
Advances W officers and employees 6,866,806 5,913,890
Others 149,288,785 2,164,308
Refundable depositg** 21,427,422 19,235,359
§3,045,229,188 7.265,207,722
Financial assets at FVOLI §92,132.088 243,433,060
£13,237,368,276 P7,508,644,782

Rl vcfuding cest on hand amouting te #3353, 24 mitlion and P244.75 miltion as af December 3], 2020 and 209, respeciively.
w3 hgcfucfod pder O goncerent assers T account i the consaliduted siatemonts of finosciol position fsee Note 13),

The maximum exposure for cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash en hand) is the carrying
amount less insured amount by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation equivalent to the actual
cash balance to a maximum of 20,50 miition per depositor per bank. The maximum expasure of
trade and non-trade receivables and refundable deposits is equal to its carrying amount.
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Credit quakitv of Financial Assets. Other than Trade Receivables

The financial assets of the Group are grouped according to stage whose description is explained as
follows:

Stage | - Those that are considered current and up to 120 past due and based on change in rating
delinquencies and payment history, do not demonsirate significant tncrease in credit risk.

Stage 2 - Those that, based on change in rating, delinquencies and payment history, demonstrate
significant increase in credit risk, and/or are considered more than 120 to 360 days past due but does

not demonstrate sbjective evidence of impairment as of reporting date.

Stage 3 - Those that are considered in defaull or demonstrate objective evidence of impairment as of
reporting date,

The credit quality of the Group’s financial assets are as follows:

2028
BCL Staging
Stage § Stuge 2 Stage 3
12-month LCL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECE Total
Financial assets af amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents™® B3 887,264,071 [ $- P2,R57,2064,071
Nomnirade receivables:
Advances 1o officers and
" employees 6,866,800 - — 6,866,866
(thers 149,288,785 - - 149,288,785
Relundable depogng®* 21,427,422 — - 21,427,422
2,734,847, 144 L P P2 734,847,144

“hvehicding custoon fasd apromiingg fo 233334 wiltion ay ae December 31, 2020,
3 fpefisded wader Oiber noncnrrent assels” aecownd i the consalidoted company sidement of finaneial position,

2019
ECL Staping
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3
| 2-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime LCL Total

Fancial assets at amortized cost
Cagh and cash equivalents® PIOIO2IR2LS B P P2.010.2182135
Nontrade recetvables:
Advances to officers and

employees sotzged - 3,913,890

Others 2,194,508 - 2,194 508
Refundable deposits™®* 19,235,359 — 19,235 359
P2037,561,972 . 2. 2 P2 037,361,972

F et ing cash o hand amcmbing (o P 24473 million ax ar December 34, 20439,
W fureferded nneer OWer moncenrrent assids " decowitt i the copsolidated compeny stotemont of financical position.

Credit Quality of Trade Receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit osses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segment with similar loss patterns (i.e, by customer type). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

A LA
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Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Group’s trade receivabies using
provision matrix:

20520
Days past due

91 days and

Crreni. §-30 days 3306 dayy 1) days ahove Fotal
fxpectod aredit Toss rate £9%, 4% % 1% 29"
tatimated wdal gross caymg
amount & deifault £7.609.364,i51 BE50621,274 400,002, 18D 360,266,377 £2,147.556,367 $11,676,900,358
Expeeied credit loss 44,863,938 21,304,155 45,194,870 41,105,689 614,044,662 766,518,314
2O
Pays past due
81 days and
Current O30 days 31-60 davs 0 -9 dawys above Total
Expected credit loss rate %% 6% %% 1% 3%
Fstimated woral gross carying
ameunt at gefasl P3 R0 4492 950 P38 458,200 Bl5027 335 P1.236 464675 P35 TOR 679,157
Expected credit boss 47 562 387 | 8.071 665 17,431,750 £0 | Tt 446 407 600 549,039 607

Capital Management
The primary ohjective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in
aconomic conditions, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, pay off existing debts, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares.

The Parent Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for each of the three years ended
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,

The Group monitors its capital gearing by measuring the ratio of interest-bearing loan to total equity.
The Group’s interest-bearing loans, which are the short-term loans, amounted to 720.35 million and
R400.00 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The Group’s total equity
attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to
£12.809.06 mitlion and £9,586.43 miilion, respectively.

-

. Fair Value Measurement

The table below presents the carrying values and fair values of the Group’s assets and liabilities, by
categary and by class, as at December 3 1:

2426
Fair Value
Significant
Quoted Prices in Significant Einabservabic
Active Markets Observable Input inputs
Carrying Value (Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Assets
Assets Measyred at Foir Velue
Land at revalued amount $2.803,196,184 B £ £2.803,196,184
Fiancial assets at Fy OO 102,132,088 - 12,971.842 179,160,240
Assets jor which Fair Values are
Disclosed
Investment properties 34,869,834 - — 203,902,548
Financial assels at amortized cost -
Relundable deposits™ - ~ E7. 427,832
- 212971842 #1203 6810140

Factuded under Otier noncirrent assels " aeeound Bothe woitoes{sdated stafement of finapciad posiies e None TR
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2019

Fair Value

Srgnificant

Quoted Prices in Significant Unobservable
Active Markets  Observable Input Inputs
Carrying Value (Level 1) Hoevel D {1.ovel 3)
Assets
Assets Measured al Fair Folue
Land al revalued amount £2.803,196,184 B - P2.803.196,184

Financial assets at FVOCT 243,433,060

Assets for which Fair Values are
Dhisclosed

Investment propertics

Financial agsets al amortized cost -
Relundable depogits™

30,252,221

19,235,359

15,925,000 227,508,060

203,102,548

- 18,350,350

£3.102,116,824

P— £15,925,000 *3.252,957. 142

Bfncheded wndor “Other noncureent assels” aevomn it the consalidated siawement of financial position (see Nole 13

Asat December 31, 2020 and 2019, the fair value of equity instruments in & listed entity is classified
under Level 3 due to the investee Company’s suspension of trading in the rmarket,

The fair values of equity instruments in lsted and non-listed companies classified under Level 3 were
determined through asset-based approach. Asset-based approach is based on the value of all the
tangible and intangible assets and habilities of the investee Company.

Presented below are the significant unobservable inputs used in the net asset valuations of the

Group’s financial assets in 2020 and 2019:

Bescription

Unobservable Inputs

Range
2620 2019

Listed equity instroment:
Casinos and gaming industry

Moa-listed squity instruments:
Media and entertainment
industry

Discount for lack of control

Diseount lor lack of marketabidity
Discount for tack of control

Discount for tack of muarketability

H04-30%
H0%-30%

FOY6-30%
10%6-30%

16%-30% 10%4-30%

F0%-36% 10%6-30%

An increase (decrease) in the significant unchservable inputs used in the valuation of the equity
investments will increase {decrease) the fair value of the equity investments.

Movements in the fair value of equity investments classified under Level 3 are as follows:

2020 2019
Balance at beginning of vear £227,508,061 226,994,846
Fair value adjustment recognized under “Net
unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at
FVOCTr {48,347,815) 513,216
Balance al end of year #179,166,246 P227,508,061

RO



-7 -

Fair Value Determination
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each asset and liabitity
for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cuash and Cash Equivalents and Trade and Other Receivables

The carrying values of cash and cash equivatents and trade and nontrade receivables approximate
their fair values primarily due to the relatively short-term maturity of these {inancial instruments.
Refundable Deposits

The fair value of refundabie deposits is based on the present value of the future discounted cash
flows. Discount rates used range from 3.26% to 4.44% in 2020 and 2019,

Financial assets at FYOCI

The Group’s investments in club shares were based on prices readily available from brokers and other
regulatory agencies as af reporting date. The fair values of equity investments in listed and non-listed
companies have been estimated using the net asset value model. The valuation vsing adjusted net
asset approach requires the management to measure the fair value of the individual assets and
liabilities recognized in an investee’s statement of financial position as well as the fair value of any
unrecognized assets and liabilities at the measurement date.

fnvestment Properties and Land al Revalued Amount

The valuation for investment properties and land af revalued amount was derived through market data
approach based upon prices paid in actual market transactions. This approach reltes on the
comparison of recent sale transactions or offerings of similar properties which have occurred and/or
offered with close proximity to the subject property adjusted based on certain elements of comparison
{e.g. market conditions, location, physical condition and amenities). Significant unobservable
valuation input in determining the fair value of investment properties includes adjusted price per
square meter that ranges from £1,400 to £117,000. On the other hand, significant unobservable
vattation input in <letermining fair value of land at revalued amount includes adjusted price per
square meter that ranges from P200 to $57,000,

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated price persquare meter would result in a significantly
higher (lower) fair value of the properties.

Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities fexcluding Payable to Government Agencies and
Advances from Customers), Shori-term Loans, Obligations for Program and Other Rights and
Dividends Payable

The carrying values of trade payables and other current liabilities, short-term loans, current portion of
obligations for program and other rights and dividends payable approximate their fair values due to
the relatively shert-term maturity of these financial instruments,

Lease liabilities

‘the fair value is based on the discounted value of future cash flows using the applicable rates for
simijar types of loans plus the applicable credit spread. Discount rates used ranged from 1.59% to
3.57% in 2020 and 3.07% to 5.43% in 20]9.

= R
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32. Changes in Liabifities Arising from Financing Activities

January 1, December 34,

2024 Additions Pavments Gthers® 2020

Shore-term Toans B404,600,600 £484,340,D60) (#641,895,000) (£22,100.00¢ #7260,343,000
Lease habilities 105,788,115 - (21,762,363) {10068 76,856,472
Dividends pe}_va'blu 18,734,008 £,475,9499,531 (E,474,749,102) - 19,894,437
Accrued interest expense s 1,466,667 12,146,694 {12,856,998) - 756,303

Tot Habilities from financing
acliviticy $E25,988,790 $2,472,390,225 (2.151,263,463) {£29,264,650}3 2817851872

Fhers periain fo revaluation of freign currency denosmmaicd Toans, wid veereion of Brerest and pro-ieriinution of lease Loehilities.
X nctudvd wider " Accannts pavahle und other carvent ahilities " vecount in the consafidated siarement of finuncial position
fvee Note 16,

January 1, December 31,

2019 Additions Payments Otherg™ 2019

Short-tenm foans B 300,000,000 1317500000 {(P1.617,500.000) 2 P00 000,000

[Lease Habilities 66,535,587 33939202 (21,694 .603) 6987 979 103,788,113

Dividends payabie 17053776 2,199,839.207 {2,198 159 06%) - 18,734 008

Acerued mterest expense™ ¥ G Ad4 46,185 621 {(45.66339%y - 1 466 667
Total labilities from financing

activities P584,533 807 P3.8174%4 130 (P3.883.017,.127) PO 987 974 P3525 088 790

B Hhors pertain e gecretion of inferesi,
A cfacdead wowder VA vensnes povelle and odier currerd Babitities " aceot in the vorsolidated stofement of fincaciod position (vee Nofe 10,

. Events after the Reporling Period

Corporate Recovery and Tax incentives for Enterprises

President Rodrigo Duterte signed into law on March 26, 2021 the Corporate Recovery and Tax
Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE) Act to attract more investments and maintain fiscal prudence
and stability in the Philippines. R.A. 11534 or the CREATE Act introduces reforms to the corporate
income tax and incentives systems. lt takes effect 15 days after its complete publication in the
Official Gavette or in a newspaper of general circulation or April 11, 2021,

The following are the key changes to the Philippine tax law pursuant to the CREATE Act which have
an impact on the Group:

e Dffective July 1, 2020, RCIT rate is reduced from 30% to 25% for domiestic and resident foreign
corporations. For domestic corporations with net taxable income not exceeding P5.00 million
and with total assets not exceeding P100.00 mitlion (excluding tand on which the business
entity’s office, plant and equipment are situated) during the taxable year, the RCIT rate is reduced
to 20%.

MCIT rate reduced from 2% to 1% of gross income elfective July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023,

e [mposition of improperly accumulated earnings tax (1AET) is repealed.

As clarified by the FRSC in its Philippine Inferpretations Committee Q&A No. 2020-07, the
CREATE Act was not considered substantively enacted as of December 31, 2620 even though some
of the provisions have retroactive effect to July [, 2020, The passage of the CREATE Act into {aw
on March 26, 2021 is considered as a non-adjusting subsequent event. Accordingly, current and
deferred taxes as at and for the year ended Decernber 31, 2020 continued to be computed and
measured using the applicable income tax rates as of December 31, 2020 (i.e., 30% RCIT / 2%
MCIT) for financial reporting purposes.

| L
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Applying the provisions of the CREATE Act, the Group would have been subjected to lower regular
corporate income tax rates of 25% and 20% effective huly 1, 2020,

#  This will result in lower provision for current income tax for the year ended December 31, 2020
and lower income tax payable as of December 31, 2020, which will be reflected in the Group’s
2020 annual income tax return but will only be recognized for financial reporting purposes in its
2021 financial statements. Pending clarification from the tax authorities on how the taxable
income for the period beginning July 1, 2020 will be computed, the Group has not quantified the
impact of the lower corporate income tax rate on the 2020 current income tax.

«  This wiil result in lower deferred tax assets and Liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and benefit

from deferred tax for the year then ended by #195.47 million and P23.17 miilion, respectively.
These reductions witl be recognized in the 2021 financial statements,

ARLIRAHARR TR



Tel {832) 8851 0307 BOAIPRC Reg. Mo, 0001,

fan: (B32) BE1G 0872 Oectoher 4 18, valid until August 24, 2021

ey.comiph SEC Accrediteation No., 0012-FR-6 (Group A),
November €, 2018, vafid unill November 5, 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
GMA Network, inc. and Subsidiaries
GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue corner EDSA

Quezon City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Group) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 26, 2021. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Group’s management, These schedules are
presented for purposes of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, and are not
part of the basic financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material
respects, the information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

y T’ ““Q‘
'Beiinda T. Beng Hﬁli 3

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 88823

SEC Accreditation No. 0943-AR-3 {(Group A),
March 14, 2019, valid uatil March 13, 2022

Tax Identilication No. [53-978-243

BIR Accreditation No, 08-061998-078-2020,
December 3, 2020, valid until December 2, 2023

PTR No. 8534224, january 4, 2021, Makati City

March 26, 2021
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SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co Tel {8372) 8881 0307 BOAPRC Reg. MNa. 0001,

G760 Ayala Avenue Fax (832) 8819 0872 Gotober 4, 2018, valkd undit August 24, 2021
1226 Makah City ey cort/ph JEC Accreditation Mo, 0012.FR-5 (Group A),
Prilippines Movernber B, 2018, valid uniil Movemiber 4, 2021

INDEPENDENT AUBITOR’S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries

GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue corner £EDSA

Quezon City ’

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the conselidated financial
statements of GMA Network, Inc, and Subsidiaries (the Group) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 26, 2021, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators, including
their definitions, formulas, calculation, and their appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, are
the responsibility of the Group’s management. These financial scundness indicators are not measures of
operating performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is presented for the
purpose of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance
with PFRS. The components of these financial soundness indicators have been traced to the Group’s
financial statements as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2020 and no material exceptions were noted.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

M T. fg ‘
Belinda T. Beng Fii

Partner

CPA Certificate No, 88823

SEC Accreditation No. 0943-AR-3 (Group A),
March 14, 2019, valid untif March 13, 2022

Tax ldentification No. 153-978-243

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-078-2020,
December 3, 2026, valid until December 2, 2023

PTR No. 8334224, January 4, 2021, Makati City

March 26, 2021
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GMA NETWORK, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Annex 68 - J

A Financial Assets

B. Amounts Receivable from Direciors, Offtcers, Employees, Related Parties
and Principal Stockhotders (Other than Related Parties)

. Amounis Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during
the Consolidation of Financial Statements

D. Long-term Debt

E. Indebtedness te Related Parties {Long-term Loans from Related
Companies)

F. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

(. Capital Stock

Additional Components

i)

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

iy Map of Relationships of the Companies within the Group

Attached

Not applicable

Attached

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Attached

Aftached

Attached



GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-J

DECEMEBER 31, 2020

Schedule A, Financial Assets

Name of Issuing Entity and

Number of
Sharesg or
Principal

Amounts of

Amount Shown
in the Statements
of Financial

Value Based on
Market Quotation
at end ol

Income Received

Asgociation of Each [ssue Bonds and Notes Position  Reporting Period and Accrued
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand P 355,239,902 2. B
Cash in banks - 2.33730837% - 1.989.070
Peso Placements:
Abacus Capital & Investment
Corporation — 105,143,226 6,170,974
Amalgamated Investment
Bancorporation - 7,865,306 157,149
Bank of Commerce - 4005419 - 37.974
Charter Ping An - 6,160,687 67,045
Land Bank of the Philippines - - - 1,117,949
Mafayan Bank - 55,226,607 - 1,534 131
Metropolitan Bank and Trust
Company - 96,047 - -
Philippine Business Bank 2,125,042 31,297
Philippine Bank of
Communications = 10.593,186 - 148,491
Unicapital, Inc. 30,787,713 811,039
Lnited Coconut Planters Bank 50,051,129 - 372,014
Union Bank of the Philippines - sg.127.621 - 1,020,298
322271983 11.465,981
Dollar Placements:
Fastwest Bank 142,364
United Coconut Planters Bank — - - 117,998
- 200,362
Total Placements — 322,271,983 — 11,726,343
P £3,214.817,204 P PI3,715413
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
1P 1 Games Ventures, Inc. 13,000,000,000 P117.273,005 £ P--
Unicapital, Inc. 778,504 56,594,699 -
Mabuhay Philippine Satellite 405,666 269,008
Oplima Studio 73,000 4,805,000
Asvada Alabang Country Club - A i 6,000,600 6,000,000
Baguio Country Club 1 3,000,000 3,000,000
Metropolitan Club (Metroclub) A 7 1,200,000 1,200,000
Manila Southwoods A i 1,285,000 1,285,000
Camp John Hay Golf Club | 150,00t 130,000
Reefpoint Picture 246,923 - -
Tagaylay Counlry Club l 1,236,842 1,236,842
Royale Tagaytay i 100,000 100,000 -
Others — 1,000
P92 132,088 212,971,842 P




Sehedule B. Amounts Reeeivable from Directors, Gtticers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other thun Related Parties)
December 31, 2020

Deductions
Name and Designation Balance at Beginning of Amount Amount Balance at End of
of Debtor Period Addiiions Collected  Written Off Current Noncurrent Period

Net Applicable: The Group has no ameunts receivable from directors, officers, employees, related parties and
principal stockholders as at December 31, 2620 other than those for purchases subject to usual tevms,
for ordinary travel and expense advances, and for other such items arising in the ordipary course of business,
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Schedule . Long-Term Debt
December 31, 2020

Amouni  Amount shown under caption Amount shown under
Title of Issue and Type Authorized  “Current portion of long term  caption “Long term debt”
of Obligation by Indenture  debt” in related balance sheet in related balance sheet

Mot Applicable: The Group has no long-term debt as at December 31, 2020,

Schedule £, Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Terms from Related Companies)
December 31, 2020

Balance, Batance,
Name January 1, 2020 December 31, 2020

Not Applicable: The Group has no noncurrent indebtedness to a refated party as at
December 31, 2020,

Sehedale F. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
December 31, 2020

Name of 1ssuing LEntity of Title of lssue of  Total Amount Amount Owned
Securities Guaranteed by Each Class of Guaranteed by Person for
the Company for which Securities and which the Nature of
this statement is filed Guaranteed Outstanding  Statement is Filed  Guarantee

Not Applieable: The Group has no guarantees of securities of other issuers as at
December 31, 2020,

Schedule G. Capital Stoek

December 31, 2020
Number of
Number of shares  shares
issued and reserved for
outstanding as options,
shown under warrants, Drirectors,
Number of related statements  conversion  Number of officers,
Title of shares of financial and other shares held by and
issue authorized position caption rights related parties  employees  Others
Common 5,000,0600,000 3,361,047,0060 * N/A 3,024,812.553  19.620,355 316,614,092
Preferred 7.500,000,000 7,499 507,184 **  N/A 7,480,610,364 27.294 9,869,526

!

f of treasury stock iotaling 3,643,000 shares.
Nert of treasury stock {otaling 492 8106 shares.



GMA NETWORK, INC,

RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE
FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 ’

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginuing of the year
l.ess: Non-actual/unrealized income
Deferred tax assets recognized in profi or foss

P2,587,183,680

(526.680,119)

Unappropriated retained earnings, as adjusted fo available

for dividend distribution, beginning of the vear 2.,060,503,501
Add: Net income actuaily earned/realized during the period

Net income of the Parent Company clesed to Retained Earnings 6,021,590,045
less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax

Provision for deferred income tax (137.361,004)

Unrealized foreign exchange gain {229.854)
Net income actually earned/realized during the year 5,883,999, 187
fess:

Dividends declaration during the year (1.458,059,531)

Treasury stocks (28,483,171

Underiying shares of the acquired Philippine Deposit Receipts {5,790,016)
Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration, Ending  £6,452,170,030

4



GMA NETWORK, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

Financial Ratios Formula 20240 2019
Current/liquidity ratio Current assets over current liabilities 2.89:1 2.66:1
Total current assets 16.446,406.494
Divided hy:
Total current Hiabilites 5,681,082.320
Current ratio 2.89
Acid Test Ratio Quick assets over current liabilities 2.85:1 2.65:1
Tolal current assets . 16,446,406,494
less:
inventory 237,054,907
Other current assets 252,870
16,209,008,717
Divided by
Total current liabilites 3,681,682,320
Acid test ratio 2,85
Soebvency ratio Net income plus non-cash expenses over total liabilities 0.69:1 0.04:1
Net inceme 0,007,334,323
Add:
Non-cash expenses 1.636,430,964
Total 7,043, 785287
Divided by:
Total liabilities 11,057,834 850
Solvency ralio 0.09
Asset-to-cquity ratie Total asset over total equity 1.86:1 1.69:1
Total assets 23.939.269,470
Divided by: :
Total equity i2.881.414.620
Asget-1o-cquily ratio .80
Drebt-to-equity ratie Short-term loans over total equity 0.66:1 0.04:1

Total short-term loans
Divided by:
Total equity

720,343,000

12.881,414,620

Assel-to-equity ratio

0.06




b2

Financial Ratios Formula 2020 2019
Met debt to equity ratio Interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash {0.19): 1 {019y
equivalents over total equity
Totat short-lerm loans 720,345,000
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents 3.214.817.264
{2,494,472.264)
Divided by:
Total cauity 12,881,414.620
Net debt-to-equity ratio (0.19)
Interest rate coverage Earnings before interest, tax over interest expense 418.52:¢ 683411
ratio
Net income 6,007,334,323
Add:
interest 20,545,123
Tax 2,584,447.773
Less:
Interest income (13715413}
8.598,581,806
Divided by:
interest 20,545,123
Interest rate coverage ratio 418.52
Gress profit margin Gross profit over net revenues 79.6T% 6(.98%
Gross profit 15,404,3403,080
Divided by:
l\u revenue 19,335 805,538
Giross profit margin 79.67%
Net income margin Net income over net revenues 3L.07% 16.00%
Net income 6,007,334,323
Divided by:
Net revenue 19,335,895,538
Net income margin 31.07%
Return on equity Net imcome aver average total stockhbolder’s equity 33.31% 27.43%

Net income
Divided by:
Average equity

6.007,334.323

11,269,245 815

Return on equity

53.31%




Financial Ratios

Formuia ' 2020
Return on assets

Net income over average total asseis

2019
29.82%, 16.68%
Net income
Divided by:
Average assel
Refurn on asset

6,007.334.323

20,143,074 020
29.82%




GALA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VIAP OF THE RELATIONSHIPS OF THE COMPANIES WITHIN THE GROUFP

- Pubiic
L {23.85%)

 Duavit, mcnamwun o
Jimenez Family
(76.15%}
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MARKETING = ool ons  NATLRADIO  pRODUCTION ~  AIRBROADCAST - SETS,PROPSS& = PRODUCTIONS QTHERS
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CERTIFICATION

1, ROBERTO RAFAEL V. LUCILA, of legal age, Filipino, with office address at the 15% Floor of
Sagittarius Condominium, 111, H.V. Dela Costa St., Salcedo Village, Makati City, after being duly sworn in
accordance with law, hereby depose and state that:

1.

1 am the Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer of GMA Network, nc. with SEC
Registration No. 5213, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the

Philippines, with office address at GMA Network Center, Edsa Corner Timog Avenue,
Diliman, Quezon City;

In compliance with Article 9(B) of the 1987 Philippine Constitution, none of the Directors,
independent Directors and Officers of GMA Network, Inc. are elected as public servants and
or appointment in any government agency, local or foreign, without authority of law;
grovided however that it must be disclosed that as of this date, Dr. Jaime C. Laya is a Trustee
(Director) of the Cultural Center of the Philippines and Atty. Roberto Rafael V. Lucila is a
member of the Bicol University Board of Regents;

| am issuing this Certificate in compliance with the requirement of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Officer/Corporate Secretary
GMA Network, Inc.

5
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this %?§ 1 %3 , 2021, Affiant exhibited to

me his 555 D No, 03-6383452-8.
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Page No.
Book No.
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

[, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBARN, Filiping, of legal age and a resident of 1203
Acacia Street, Damarifias Village, Makati City, after having been duly sworn to in
accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

1. tam a nominee for independent director of GMA NETWORK, INC. and have

been its independent director since 2007;

2. I am affiliated with the following publicly-listad companies:

Company/QOrganization Position/ Period of Service
Relationship

First Philippine Haldings Corporation independent Director 2007 - present
Metro Pacific Investments Corporation independent Director 2007 - present
Meralco Independent Director 2008 - present
Robinsons Land Corporation Independent Director 2008 - present
GMA Holdings, Inc. Independent Director 2009 - present
Petron Corporation Independent Dirgctor 2010 - present
Asian Terminals, Inc. Independent Director 2010 - present
PLDT, Inc.. independent Director 2013 - present
Jollibee Foods Corporation Non-Executive Director 2012 - present
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company Senior Adviser 2007 - present
Double Dragen Properties Corp. Adviser 2014 - present
Bank of the Philippine Islands Member, Advisory Council 2016 - present
Merry Mart Consumer Corporation Adviser 2020 - present

‘ For my full bio-data, log on tc my personal website: cipanganiban.com

3. | possess all the gualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
independent Director of GMA NETWORK, INC., as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC

issuances.

4. To the best of my knowledge, | am not related to any director/officer/substantial
shareholder of GMA Network, Inc. and its subsidiaries and sffiliates.

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subiect of any criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding pending in court.

6. To the best of my knowledge, | am neither an officer nor an employee of any
gevernment agency or government-owned and controlled corporation.

7. | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and respensibilities as
Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules
and Regulaticns, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC Issuances.

8. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA NETWORK, INC., of any changes
in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.



BPE 08 700
Done this day of , 2021 at Makati City.
ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN
Affiant
APR 08 2071
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 2021 at Makati

City, affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport Numbetr

P0388884B issued on January 24, 2019 by the DFA Manila and will expire on January
23, 2029.
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
i, JAIME C. LAYA, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 11 Panay Avenue, Quezon
City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1. [ am a nominee for independent director of GMA NETWORK, INC. and have been its
independent director since 2007,

2. | am affiliated with the following companies or organizations {including Government-
Owned and Controlied Corporations):

Company/Organization Position Period of Service
Phitippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank} | Director and President | 2004-present
GMA Network, Inc. and GMA Holdings, independent Director | 2067 -present
Ine.

| Manila Water Company, Inc. independent Director | 2014-present
Ayala Land, Inc. independent Director | 2010-present
Philippine AXA Life Insurance Co,, Inc. Independent Director | 2005-present
Charter Ping An Insurance Corporation independent Director | 2016-

- Don Neberto Ty Foundation, Inc. ) Chairman 2005-present

| Society for Cultural Enrichment, Inc. Vice Chairman 2009-present
Filipinas Opera Society Foundation, Inc. Vice Chairman 2014-present

| Museo del Galeon, Inc. Trustee and Treasurer | 2016-present

Makati Sports Club, Inc. Director and Treasurer | 2019-present

Cofradia de la Immaculada Concepcion Trustee 1979-present

Heart Foundation of the Philippines, Inc. Trustee ca. 1985-present
“St. Paut University — Quezon City Trustee 2002-present
Fundacion Santiago, Inc. Trustee 2002-present
Cultural Center of the Philippines Trusiee 2003-present
Metropolitan Museum of Maniia Trustee ca. 2004-present
Yuchengco Museum Trustee ca, 2007-present
Ayala Foundation, Inc. Trustee 2013-present
Escuela Taller Foundation of the ; Chairman Emeritus 2013-present
Philippines, Inc.

Various other NGOs Trustee ca. 1990-present
Various family corporations Director ca. 1860-present

3. | possess all the gualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an

Independent Director of GMA NETWORK, INC., as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities
Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4, To the best of my knowledge, | am not related to any director/officer/substantial
shareholder of GMA NETWORK, INC. and its subsidiaries and affiliales other than the
relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3. of the Securities Regulation Code.

5. To the best of my knowledge, { am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding.

6. [ have the required written or consent from the President of the Cuitural Center of the
Philippines to be an independent director in GMA NETWORK, INC. pursuant to Office of the
President Memorandum Circular No. 17 and Section 12, Rule XV of the Revised Civil
Service Rules.




7. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC Issuances.

8. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA NETWORK, INC., of any changes in the
above-menticned informa}j{gm v\{/itginﬁive (5) days from its occurmence.
Done this day of , 2021 at Makati Cityr—-..

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 2021 at

Makati City, affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport Number
P24389338 by the DFA, Manila issued on July 4, 2019.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES }
CITY OF MAKATI } 8.8,

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, ROBERTO RATAERL V. LUTILA, of legal age, Hilipino, with office address at
154 Ploor, Sagittarius Condominium, F.V. dela Costa Street, Salcedo Village, Makati
City, after having been duly sworn, hereby depose and say:

1. 1 am the Corporate Secretary ,of GMA NETWORK, INC (the
“Corporation”), a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the
laws of the Republic of the Philippines with office address at GMA Network Center,
FDSA corner Timog Avenue, Diliman, Quezon City;

2. Tn cormection with the Corporation’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held
last July 17, 2020, and in compliance with the Revised Corporation Code and SEC
Memorandum Cireular No. 6, series of 2020, [ hereby certify the following:

{(a) In a meeting dated April 13, 2020, the Board of Directors unanimously
authorized the Executive Committee of the Corporation to determine whether the
Corporation’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on May 20, 2020, shall be held as
scheduled either by actual meeting or remote conununication pussuant to the relevant
cireulars of the Securities and Exchange Comymission (SEC), or postponed to a later
date, taking into consideration the limitations brought about by the enhanced
community quarantine due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

by  On April 16, 2020, the Corporation’s Hxecutive Committee approved the
procedure for the conduct of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and the participation
therein via remote communication (including the procedure for stockholders” voting in
absentia), in accordance with the relevant circulars promulgated by the SEC, taking into
consideration all the cirewnstances attendant to the COVID-19 pandemic and pursuant
to Article [V, Section 6, last paragraph of the By-laws of the Corporation and the Board
of Directors” resolution passed at it special meeting on April 13, 2020, The said
procedure for the conduct of the 2020 Annual Stockholders” Meeting via remote
communication was set out in the Notice to be sent to the stockholders of record and in
the Information Statement.

{c) Subject to its compliance with the Data Privacy Act of 2012 and its
implementing rules and regulations, the Corporation issued - to all stockholders {a) the
guidelines for registration to participate or attend the meeting or vote in absentia, (b)
the procedure for voting in absentia, as well as () the procedure before, during and
after the Corporation’s Annual Stockholders” Meeting on July 17, 2020, via the following
link: hétps:/ /www . gmanetwork.com/corporate /2020GMAASM. guidelines.




Prior to the meeting, the following stockholders manifested thelr intention fo

participate in the Corporation’s Annual Stockholders” Meeting neld last fuly 17, 2020
via remote connection:

INDIVIDUALS
1) Ma. Martha Michaela E. Ageaoili
2} Mario Crisostomo
) Marilou Tibavan
43 Janessa Valdellon
5 Anthony Gilbert Antiquiera
6) Arnie Mariano
7} Adoracion Lapada
8 Emmylou Diez
G} Edilberto Donatoe Balanak
10} Jaybee Reyes g
11 Rolando Sanico i
12) Ishmael Sam Canua
13) Ferdinand Perlas
14) Abigail Sy
15} Harlene Punongbayan-lturralde

16) Jermy Go
17 foseph Bague

18) Rene Gozum

19} Carolina Mangalonzo
20 Marian Antonio

Z21) Maricar Buenafe

22} Janelle Crystal Javier
23 Anna Mae Remoreras

24) Cherry Flor-Cruz

25) Felipe L. Gozon

26) Gilberto R Duavit, Jr.

27) Judith K. Duavit-Vazquez

28} foel Marcelo G, Jimenez
29) Felipe S. Yalong
anm Arma Teresa M. Gozon-Valdes

31 Laura §. Westfall



32 Artemio V. Panganiban
333 jaime C. Laya

34) Roberto Rafael V. Lucila
35) Reonalde P. Masirili

36} Regie C. Bautista

CORPORATE
1) Group Management and Development, Inc. through  Gilberto R,
Duavit, Jr, |
2 Gozon Development Corporation through Atty. Felipe L. Gozon
3) Gozon Foundation Inc. through Atty. Felipe L. Gozon
4} FLG Management and Development Corporation through Atty.
Felipe L. Gozon

5) GMA Holdings, Inc. through Alty. Felipe L. Gozon and/or
Gilberto R, Duavig, Jr.

6} Television International Corporation through Joel Marcelo G.
Jirmenez and /or Laura [ Westfall
7Y MLAL Jimenez Enterprises, Inc through Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

and/or Laura }. Westiall

{e) Phiring the Corporation’s Annual Stockholders” Meeting held last
July 17, 2020, the following reminders were reiterated to the stockholders present and
represented thereir

1; For the purpose of order and audibility, only the Host and the
panelists will be heard and be visible to everyone in the meeling, unless
acknowledged by the Chalrman.

2} Hach of the proposed resolutions will be shown on the screen while
such resolution is passed during the meeting.
3) During the meeting, the stockholders can participate by stating

their names and their respective locationes and sending their writlen
questions/comuments in relation to the meeting through the Q & A function
shown in their screens,

4} The Directors and/or Management will exert diligent effort to
respond to the questions received from the shareholders during the meeting, as
circumstances may allow. If there are questions that will not be answered during



the meeting due to time constraints, the response/answer shall be sent to the
stockholder via email within two (2) weeks from the date of the meeting,

53 There shall be no casting of votes during the meeting In
accordance with the guidelines in the Notice of the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting, cnly the votes cast in absentia on or before July 14, 2020 shall be
snciuded in the tabulation of the total votes for the matters in the agenda.

YR OWITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand this 24% day of July 2020
at Makati City.
7

-~

5
i -
A R

ROBERTO RAFAEL VITUCTLA
o Corporate Secretary

Py

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 24% day of July 2020 affiant
exhibiling to me his Social Security System Identification No. 03-6383452-8.

Doe, Mo, MK '
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MINIITES
OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDBERY METTING OF
GMANETWORK, INC,
Held via Toom
Juty 17, 2020 at 10:00 am,

STOCKHOLDER'S PRESENTEIREPRESENTED: Stockhaldings (%)

Mo, of Shares Perceatags
Coranrpn Shares ZUGLTNEE72 B3.01%
Preferred Shares 7 AE9.6HE T4 B9.87%
Tatal Tssued & Outsianding Shares 0481316236 26.48%

{Met Treasury Shares)
OTHERS PRUSENT:
Board.of Divectors

Felipe 1., Gorun
Ciithento B, Duavig, dr,
Falipe 8. Yalong

Judith R, Dueavit-Vaguey

Foel Marceln €5 Jimeneyr
Foaura J. WostiaH

Anna Terosa M. Govon-Valdes
Astennio V. Panganiban

Falime O Laye

Cfizers

Roberia Rafnel V. Vet
Ronulde P, Mastrili
Muarisya L. Flores
Lilibet Rasonabie
Baduwrde P, Sanlos

Flvis B Ancheta

Regie C. Bauista
Angeta Carmels L Cruz
Victorla T, Arcaduzn

{ifenn ¥ Allona

Ohver Vicior B, Amorose
R Asmtonio 8 Sova

Bafucl Martin 1. San Agosting Je

M. Menita B, {ray
Al A Augasto P Chia

Sheila 8. Tan

Chadernan/Chief Fxeentive Officor
President/Chiet Operating Oifieer
Fxeeutive Vice-President/Chicf Fivancial
Glficet/Corporate Treaswror

PHrector

Divedar

Divector

Bivectn

Indepondent Director

depundeny Diretor

Corporate Seereiary/Complinnes Officer
Henior Viee-Pregident. Finases and 107

Senior Vieo-Prestdent, News & Public Aftairs
Serdor Viee-Frosident, Bntertainment (iroup
Consultant, ntermal Audit, Date Privacy ({Tieer
sunior Viee President & Hoad, Enpiseering
Group. Concurrent Head, Transmission and
Regionat Hngineering,

Senor Viee President, Corporate Strategic
Planning and Business Development and
Conovrrent Chiel Risk Officer and $lead,
Program Support

Vice-Prosident, Corporate A ffairs und
Communications

Viee-Prosident, Supply and Asset Management
Vice-President for Radis (perations

Croup and Concurrent Viee-President for
Uperations, ROMA

Vice Prasident, Reglonal TV

Viee President, Sales. Sales & Marketing Geoup
Vice Prosident. Program Support Depariment
Vice Prosidens. 107

First Wiee President. Administration and
Investor Refations

First Viee-President, Resvarch



et

Joseph Jerome T, Frimsia
Paul Flendrick ¥, Tiezon
e Lux D, Dellin

Mary Cregee 13, Reves

Hirst Vies President. GMA Tnlesnational

Virst Vice Prosident, Post Peoduction

First Vies President, Legal Affalvs

First Vieo President, News, News and Pubtic
AlTairs

First Viee President. Public A Hairs
Consubaim, Radio Operations and Prosident of
ROIMVA

Denais Augusto L, Caharlan Progident & COOL GMA New Madia
Raovanne Barcelony Viee President, GMA Worldwide iPhils) ne

fancssa b, Valdelion
Migue! O, Eariquer

i CALL TG ORDER

»

The Chairmun, Ay, Pelipe E. Gozon, called the Annua! Stockhulders® Mucting
of the Company to wider af 10:10 am. vie emole commusiomion throuph the Zoom
woblnar meeting facilite, in view of the povernment's COVIDG restrictions, The
Corporate Seerstary, Auy. Robuerto Rafsel V. Locili assisted by Adly, Mariy Theresa |
do Musn, vecorded the minutes of the rrocucdhiys,

. CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE AND QUORIM

The Corporste Seeretary reporied Ul e written notices of the mecling wore
duly sent 1o ol the stockholders s of record date of Jane 24, 2024, in accordance with (1)
the By-Laws of the Company. and (b the SEC Guidelines on the Allerpative Made for
Digtributivg and Providing Copies of the Notics of the Meeting, Information Statement,
and Othed Documents i connceton with the holding of the Annual Swocktholders”
Wieeting ("ANM™) for 2020 dmed Apeif 20, 2020,

The NMotics of the Annual Swekholders Meeting of the Company was pubtished
In prtat sad the online portad of The Philipnine Sty vis s Business Sesion tor hwo (2)
sonscautive days on Fune 24, 2026 and June 25, 2020, and pusted in the Company's
wihsite and b the Philippine Stogk Bxchangs onling platform, the PS5 Edpe. Uence. the
Corporale Seeretary ceritied as to proper service of the notices.

Based on the atlendanee record snd the proxies wud powers of atlorney on hand,
the Corparate Seerotary also cortified that 2.991.705.872 common shares or 88.01% af
W 3.364692.000 wind issued and auistanding conmmon shares and 7.489.610.364
preferred shares or 99.89% of the 7499507 184 ot issued and outstanding praferred
shares.  sguivalent w o wial of FOLBI316.236 or 96.48% of the 10.864.199.184 1ol
eustanding commuon und preforred shares tned of weasury shares), wers reprosented by
the owners-olrocord or helr respostive proxies. Therefore, the Corpurate Seoretary
certified that o guorum existed for te transaction of business.

HE READING AND APFROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THER ANNUAL
STOTCKHOLDERS MEETING HELD ON MAY i3, 2019

The Chaivraa stated thal the (st item in the order of business is the reading and
approval of te Mioues of thy Annual Siockholdery” Meeting held o May 15, 2019,
which «fid not inchde oxtraerdingry mutters, the summary of which was eladed in the
Information Statement posted i the Company”s webshe and in the PSE Edae, and a oy
ol which was also pesied in the Company ‘s website.



Upoi motion duly made and seconded, the reading of the minutes was dispunsed
with, Uonsequently. following resalntion wos enamimously aperoved by the sisckholders
hokding 9648% of the Company™s otal issued and outstanding sharcs prosent and
repragorted:

]

CRESOLVED, Thal, the reading of the Minuies of the Annual
Stockholders” Meeting held on May 13, 2019 be dispensed with and that
the same minules os uppearing (o the minuies book of the Company be
herehy APPROVEID

Y. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chalrman and the Chief Fxecutive Officer, Felipe 1. Gozon. delivered the
Anntal Reporl of the Chalrman/UEO for the year ended December 31, 2619 with
aucomipanying audic-visual prosemation ol the said report,

The Chatrman ackoowledged that we are in e midst of g roal-lifs nandemic, which
started with a silent vieus, toltewed by Isolaton, gearantine. and e search Tor o vicoine
or g cure. A crishs Hke ds Lests us as individuals, us organizations and 28 countrics,

The pandemic bas reminded o5 of whint matters most—and the mission that the
Compuny hos sought to pursue every day, I an industry resding from lockdowns, social
distancing protwecis, and suspension of productions. the Conmpany has boen providing a
vital service w the Filipisos, which are the superior Enteriainment and the responsible,
winbissed, and tmely delivery of pecovsle Mows and Information, This has been fhe
Company’s comatitmoent W the stockholders in the parst, today. and in the years to come,

.

The Chairman shared with the stockhalders the Canpany™s seeomplishments {or the

patst year, il cutlook, and frow this orisis s oreafing a new normal for the dustey,

Tho year 2019 was a your of chaflenpes and friumphs, The Company invested heavily

i its digitization project, varmed record-high engagement in social media, and prew is

preseree o emerging platforms, However. considering that the Wiy W experience content

bus changed sapidly. e Company has been competing in the digHal space with other
Phitippioe whevision nuwarks and just svervone who publishes content,

The Chairman mentioned ene of the things he s proudest of in the past year — the
Company’s Eleksyon 2019 coveraps, the most watchyd coverage nationwide based on
Mielsen TV Audience Meusurement. The Company™s News organization caried oot the
advocasy canspalgn. Puswon ong Tossa which eurned & Silver prive for “Host Marketing
Camprgn for News Hrand™ 4t the 2009 Asian Dighal Media Awards, 105 a testament to
how the Company inspired Fllipines w stand Tor what is true. to fight disinfurmation, and
choose teaders who will trufy serve our couniry.

Ratings performance

A [ ay yatings. the your 2019 saw the competition golting forcer, Based on Nislson
TV wudience messwement, while OMA comained sirong in Mega Manila ond Urbun
Diwon. it lost s Tead in MNatenal Urban TV Audisnce Measurement or WUTAM. But
things got better. Towards the end o 2019, GMA, had alreudy reduced the ratings gag and,
i earty 20200 1 rechuimed the foad o NUTAM ratings. GMA's Reglonal TV s newseasts
Halliang Amianen In Metro Dagupan snd Baditang RBisdak in Metre Ceby won in 2019,
whiks Une Mindanae in Metro Davao has elosed the gap against competition.  In March
this year. UMA kept the Jead 3 the natiowside clevision vatings despite the rooent



programming changes in light of the COVID-I9 pandemic, GMA registered 33.8 percent
averupe total day people sudivnee share while ARS-CBN, before @ was shut dow, pot
284 porsent. GMA also won in all dayparis which inciude the moming. aflermoon, and
evening blocks. GMAS news chanrel. GMA Nuews TV. is consistently neek ond necl
with T3 for the thisd spot in the vatings pame.

Finawcia! performance

o terms of Rnancial performance, dw Company entered the previous yoar from a
pusiion of strength. Thespiie the challenges. the Company mansged 0 inereagse s
sonsalidated veverues trom the provious year by 8% from P15.236 billion to P16.493
bittion, The Compeny increased Hs net income Before iax {RIRTY by 3% frow P3332
billivg to P3.766 billion. The Company’s ael income after oy (NTATY also increased by
14% froms P2.324 billion (o PLOIY billion in 2019 over 2018,

The Company core husiness continued o Bourish, Adverbising rovenues contributed
92% 1o the wial revenue of the Notwork, The mbin contributor 1o tie Compiiny’s success
5 GMAST, Ty revenuos wees of PI327Y BliGon, 9% ar PLOTE Billion more than e same
period in 2818, Politient advoacics and advenisenments worlh P710.9 miflon propetiod

the growth. Mings tils windfll, the Neiwerk still managed to surpass the provious yew's
recurving sales by #3943 mitlion or 3%.

The Compamy’s radio business continued 1o grow 25 well, with recorded sales of
P633.6 million, The business unlt recouded 3 79 improvement in its top line amounting
w PLO million, White seme P24.5 million worth of lecton-related placements lifted

" Hadio’s top Hue, rocuning sales eveased by P21.3 million or 4% fom the nrevious vear,

The Compiny also hat ong of its finest vears in Regionad TV, On tope of the ratings
improventends. Regional TV sealed the vear with comivned revenues of P274.2 million,
vtlping provious vesr by 4% or P10.7 million.

I contrast (s Increase in income, the Company was able o keep it costs down.
Towl consolidated oparating wiponses (OPEX) for 2009 was only at L2781 biilion,
tranglating inte & single-digit increase of 6% from 2018, As a resull EBITDA (Barnings
Before Interest. Taxes. Depreciation and Amortizaion’ was higher hy P508.4 million at
P5392 billian, or up by 12% from previcus vear, tn 2019, the Compary paid 2 total of
2.2 bithon in nativnal und local taxes, which exeluded the withholding taxes from the
Cornpany’s employecs, wients and supplices in the total amount of P12 bilion which the
Company paid for them,

Huwever, beenuse of COVIN-T9. tn 2020, the Compsny's tonfing for the first theep
months was ondy e P35 bithon, 7% lower mainly due o slection-related inflows from

provious yesr, Mot ncomue afior (ax was ol PSE3 muthion, Hiewise loveer by 19% compared
oy 2019,

L
Pt despite these temporary fnancis! setbucks. the Chaironan staied tat the Lompany

iy dobi-free as ol end-Mareh 2020, Tiis demonstraies the Compuayy Menagement's ability
w halance radogs growih with sound financials,

Other business units & subsidizrios

b the intorpationad frond, eirime sdvertising through GMA Pinoy TV, sealed the
period al P72.0 mitlion, 9% more tian dat of 2018, Revenues From subserintion ineome
were @ PLLOST hillian,



GMA has closely worked with 5 paviner-earrions to moke Hs programs avallable
aeross il tradidowal and digital platforms, i both tneor and nonelinesr Tormars, CVA
dramas have also proven thelr universal appeal as they contioue W be popubar among
viewers i countries Hle Kemys and Dominican Repubiis, According to data Trom Aftican
surveyleg platform Geopall, Faglish-dobhed verdions of several GMA mograns airing in
Koy exceeded axpusted figures Tor primetime vieworsbip, This only shiows that GMA
Grimas” unique storviines, universal theames and vahies make them relatable o foreign
audivnes and help boost the ratings of broadeastors in Jifferont territories, Today's GMA
International channels sre distributed o over 90 countries through ity partnership with
sver HE carviers,

LGMAs digital anw. GMA New Modis, continued itz strong growth Leajoctary, with
outine advertiseraents breaching the P30D-million mesk. cquivalent to a 62% increass
from the previous yeae Through the collaborative efforts of various proups within the
Metwark, it achioved tripte diglial ad revenuc growih which is mpected 1o rise aven more
moving orward,

Revenues from Alte Productons went up by 13 poreent versus Lhe PrEVIOUS your
whike revenues rom Serip2018 inoreased by ane percent,

On the ather hand. GMA Mustc posied 24 percent decline in revenucs.

I 2819, GMA partered with PLIYE-Smart o introduce nnovative oiferings that will
comont the Compuny®s position as the oountiy’s lesding hrondoast network  and
revolaionize e TV viewing experience In the Philippines. The combination of GMAs
and PLOT-Smart’s capabifitus hrings togeiber greal diveti-to-consumur husiness with
world-clusy content crestion sxpertise. Together, OMA and PLOY T -Smart aim o deliver
the bust products sed experienses to our Kapuse viewers,

On June 26, 2020, GMA marked anothor milestone in itg digital journey - the lsunch
ol ity digial set-top box o the Alfurdabos, This, aliows the viewers to ser high deflinition
plofures. hoar better quabity sourdd, and roveive a wider range of channels, Affordaboy
offers unigue serviees such as datg casting and gmergency waming broadonst syster — all
far 4 price of anly PHER.

Lastly, the Chalrman informed all stocidiolders tat tast July 15,2020, the Company
pazd ot PLA5E bilflon (nel of treasury shares) wial cast dividends or PO ner share o
shareholders of revord as of June 24, 2020

The Chairman informed sl Kapusoe that, in the next months and years. we will see n

“wansformation of (he broadepst industey. Tt will be challenging, but also Glled with

opportunities to enrich the Hves of Fiipinos. With the supnort of all Kapuso., the Company
et woathor these tying Lmes.

For 70 years, the Compony has crealed vmely and timeless stories, Bvery day,
GMA™s journafists dellver news that Filipinos care shout the maest. Through (ViA's
programs. our arlists coplire the couniey's imnagination with meaningiuf storics. These are
the bedrack of the Cempuny s fulare — overy journatist every artist, everyone behing the
camers, and the degr sharchoiders.

The Chalrman exprossed optimism of humaniny's wiumph over darkness In this
pundemic. when a sense of commueniy powers people and when fghting for goad
eeerges. Wilh superheroes fike our fiom Hners. and v own journalists who brave the
world w provide seourate and objective infivrmation, frumanily will prevall



I parting. the Chaimman expressed bis sincerest gratitude o the stockholders, other
-stakeholders and all Kapuse, for theie unwavering  suppovt. vust and love for the

Compary. and the Company s cemmiiment: " Tera oy rraniciifing bueng o, pare sa
Pilipires. ©

Adler the report, the Chalrmen & CRO opened the Goor for comments andfor
questiors. The follawing g

uestions were wddressed by the Chalrman & CEOL as follows:

b What has been the mpact of the OOV |
What are the plans of GMA mansgen
pandemic in wrms of cinp
Cavug

9 parademic in CMA Network's revemuws?
went o miigste the effects of the current
loyee metention and revenne gencration? ~ Ishmael Sam

The Company had to deat with the etfeats
restrictions 1o arrest the effects of the panlemic just bl any other company. The
Company was forced & gie replitys of sume of GMA's high raling programs in the
meanlime, eneepl GMA News and some Public Atfhirs program like Kapuso Mo Jessica
Sehe where current episedes. not roplays, are aived, There are setbacks in revernues but
the Company acverthueless wend slong with the clogure of some business activites as it by
wy duith with lack of ansportation, quaranting, andd loekdowne, among athers, But with the
susing of quamntioe rostrictiong lapety. the Company bas started t deliberate gn gradually
airing und produsing mere currend shows, dad sl complving with the relevant
povernment-imposed quaristing restrictions.  Te Uhaleman asked the siockholders w
waish oul for more GMA programs returning o the air,

of the pandemic and the Gquarantine

2, Was tere g changs in terms of e MNetwork's busines

s priorities in view of the
angoing pandemic? Were ¢

e any major project affected? - Jusepl Hugue

The Chadrman cvplained thae (her we no mudjor changes it GMATS business
priovitios, except that it has 10 ensgee compilanee with the govemment iaposed quaranting
restrictions. The Company has no! wavered in what it wanls 1o do wid ance It s able to do
so, the Compuny will poesue is piang ond prioeitics vigoroushy,

3o How dous the Network take ears af iy anployees and talonts — wost especially the

Maws feams and other frontiiners - during this pandemic? - Carol Mungatonio

The Company considers s arplayecs o8 ene of Bs best assets. Tn lne with that, the
Company bas ken care of them during this dilffeult perind particalarty o the nigal
stapges when thare ware no maodes of frnsporiation or some mress are in ot
lockdown/quarantine,  The Company devised = systesm wherin those who can wark at
bome are allowed 1o do so. while shuttie tansporiation and {ood mesls and harard nay
wore provided 1o those needing to po 0 worl, Those who cannat do wark from home or
work at the offiee were asiced 1 (ale their vacelion and sick leaves (n advonce, white
e without leaves o unable b (ke feoves were ghven eash advances help thom tde
ovar the difficult tmes, ol consisters with Haletny Avanon.

4o Last hune 2020, GMA Nutwaerk taunched ity awn Piigital TV deviee. flow Different is
the GMA A lordabox from ABS-CBN TV Plus wnd ather non-networl Brands sueh
as ROAY Tlow is GMA' Dightal Device Compliant with tue requirernents of
government ugencies? - Ndilbena Balanak
The (MA AfTordabox is cheaper than TV Plus. The Affovdaboy alse does not have
the conditionnd seeess system s everybody san aecess free-tomnir trangmission through i,
Laostly, it hus femures that are na present in the other brands, such ag video-tecording,
SITHOIEENCY WArRing syslen., among athers,
o Did GMA eoully wait Tur s 70k Anmiversary before

elensing the GA A fTordabox?
And will there be wther Itz announcemens within

the year? - Harlene Punonghayan



Hjust happened that the Taunch of the OMA ATTrdabes coinclded with GV ACs 700
Anniversury. This project hos been in the pipeline because of the wansition fram
w digal and nat gl TV sty ore ready for
GMA A Fdaboy 0 cnable

ariadng
Giginl transmission: henee, the need for the
anatog TV seis o receive dighnd tramsmission,

6. Vow wee the saies of the OMA Afordabox right now? And what is GMA'S yearend
sales tarpet for 117 — Ana May Remoreras
Fhe GMA ACordahen are selting Hie T pan de sal. 1

hw Compuny i overshapting
its target safes wid noeds 10 ncrease iy inventony of GMA Al

Tordubeoe units for purchase,

o How srie are the speedlations th the Noetwork will also be fannching additionad
dipital channuds in the next fow months? - Marign Antonio

G will indeed launeh additional digital charnels bt will do so produatly. Heart of
Asia s already being done ead abow 2 or 3 maore digital channels will be laanched within
e yoar.

8. What is the Network’s renetion 1o the current staius o ABS-CBN franchise renewal?
~ Martear uenale
The Chairman heggod the indulgence of the stockholders and preforred not o
comment on the dosid of the ABS-CEM fanchise application,

The host stated that for the quostions that wors ol answered during. the meeting
doe (o time tonsiraints, the rasponse/answer shull be sont 1o the stockholder wia ermail
within twe (3} weeks fram the due of the mecking.

After some discussions. » sioekholdee moved that the Chairman/CED"s Annoal
Renort wgethor with the Tnapciad stoamments for the period ending December 31, 2019
b noted and appraved. Anvther stookholder suconded. Thers being no ohjection, the
fellowing resalution was therofore adopted by the stockholders holding 96.48% of the
Company's tnal issued and oustanding shares prosent ang representods

CREBOLVED, That, the Chatrman/URO s Anvnual Renort and the
Fissancial Renort for the peeiod sdding Docember 3102019 be. ay
hereby NOTED sid APPROVED ‘

wy are,

. RATIFICATION OF THE ACTS OF THED BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND CORPORATE OFFICERS

The Chairssan smted that the nest itent on the BECIL

- acth proceedings, transestions and resolutivas of the Board of Ddrevtors, Executive
Comamitiee ard Oeers of the Company from the dute 0f the last znsund stockholders
meeting on May 15 2019 Wi lo e proset The Chainman ssked the Corporate

Sceratary/Asst Corpornte Scereltiuny (o ox plaiis the nature of the #ote to be ratified,
k b

fa way the ratification of all

The Assistamt Comomte Beeretary explained that the sots of the Baacd uf
Divectors and e Exeoutive Commitice woere alt condacted in ot
business and were reflected in the winutes of all i
and the Exesuive Commitioe and. in secordance with goud corporaie practice, these are
on e with the Office of twe Corporate Seerctary and are svailable for inspection upon
the reguest of any stwoekliolder, The follawing acts 0 parlcular were sought o be
aproved:

he ordinary cowse of
e meetings of the Board of Directors

(8 Destaration ol cash dividends 1o vockholdors of record as of Jane 24, 2020, by



the Bowrd of Tirectors an fupe 15, 2000

05 AlL uots, resututions. proceedings and contracts entered intn by the Bourd of
Direciors and Managoment Tor the peried covering May 15, 3019 July 17, 2020,
adopted in e ordinary cotrse of business,

After hearing no ohicetions, and sfier motion duly made and
folivwing resolatiun
the Carmp

secorrded, the
was unpriimously approved by the stockholders hoefding 96.48% of
iy s otal issucd and nuistandiog shares present and tepeesented:

CRESOLVED. That (D) the deglaration of cash dividends to
stockhwlders of reeord as of fune 24, 2020 by the Board of Divestors on
dune 15020200 and (23 @) acts resolutions, proceedings and contracls
criered into made by the Board of Dircorrs, Exesutive Commitiee ond
Maragerient . of the Corpmation from  the date of the last asonual
steckholders” mecting on May 15, 2619 up o the proseni, a5 reflocted in
the minutes of the mettings of the Board of Dircctors and Frecutive
Committoe, are Ferchy APPROVED, CONFIRMED and RATIFIEDG

Vi ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Chalrman stated s the next item an the agenda was the clection of divectors
For the year ZU24 - 2021, The Chaisman seguesied the Nomination Commitiee o give tis
repert on the nominees o the Board of Director for the ensuing year.

Me. Githerte B, Duavig, Jr, veported that th
approved by the Mominatio
Laws ol the Corporation:

¢ tullowing were nominated and
¥ Commiliee in it fast wiesting i aceordance with the By~

FELIFEL. GO7ZON
GHBERTO R, DUAVIT, 11,
JORL MARCELG 4, HMENEY
RIDIT R, DUAVITYAZOURY,
FELIPE 5, vALOMG
ANNATERESA M, GUZONVALDES
EAURA L WESTRALL
ARTEMIO V. PANGANIIAN
IAIVES LAY A
Mr. Donvit frther stated tdun lormer hiaf Just

D Jadmee O, Laya woere nominated as the Company s Tn
no oifwr nominees,

few Artemio V. Panpaniban and
dependent Directors. Thers were

The vurrens Divactor e beon reeomnended by the Compeny’s Nowmination
Cemmittee & rocloetion. O o fusia of the neminated directons” proven traek recond
29 oshewn oy the rosulis of Ui Company™s perforniance and wller roview of thelr
gualifivetions, Gy suid Direclar wome fettiamended Ty re-clection by the Nomination
Lotamittee jncluding the Tidepe ndent Diveviors a0 il b it wesith of experivnce
will contribute fmmenialy W ihe corporgts bibjecties of the Company with doe
obuenanoe of good corporate sovemane., :

Upon setion duly mode and sceonded. and |
wens unumimously elected s members of
20202021, until their successars shall |
holding 96.48% of ¢
reprosented:

warling no ohjections. the following
e Tieard of Directors for the CHSUHIE year
wve been duly clected. by the stoekholders
W Compeny's toial igsued and outstanding shares present und



FHLIPE L. GOVON
GILBERTO B DUAVTT, I
JORL MARCELO G, IIMENEY
JUDFFH R, DUANVIT-VAZDURZ
FELIBE S YALONG
APTMACTHRESA M, GOZON-VALDES
EAURA G WESTFALL
ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN Undependert Director)
IAIME C LAY A (frddependent Diracrory

The Corporaw Secretary explained thin the Company adopts the cumulative
voting method wherehy the Divectors stall be elected by pluesiity of voies and vy
stockholder Wil be entitled w0 cumidate hig vates. As part of elostranic votiag in abisentia,
I nddition w the cheek boses beside the rames of the nominees, 8 commuent bos WA
previded for any specitic instruction fom the stockholder on the manner by which he or
she shalf wish i comelato Ms o her votes amang s or bey pretiored nomines/s. In the

Cabsence of any such instructon, the voies of such stockholder were case equally among
the namus of the nominees chusen/ehecked by him ar her,

Vi APPOINTMENT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Chairman steted that the next itom on the ag
external auditor. The Chabnman invited ¢
for the external auditor,

enda was the glection of the
e Audit Commities o give s vecommendation

P Laya, the Chairman of the Audit Cammily
and the Chalrman reviewed the perlormance and the
tiditors and recommended has Syeip Gorres Ve
Conpany™s Externat Auditor for V2620,

e, explained that the Commites
propased fees of the corrent external
o & Co be reeappointed as the

After motion duly made and seoonded. the following resolution was wnanimously
approved By the stockboiders hotding 56,459,

7o of the Company's total ssued wod
eutstamding shares present, and represented:
TRESOUVED, That the Sycln Garres Velaye & Co. be

appeinied
a5 the Bxterrad Auditor of the Company for FY2020.°

VHL OTHER MATTERS/ADICU RNMEMNT

The Chairman vpencd the Heor for amy other mausrs which the shureholdery
wared (o bring up. There being hoae, the mweling wis, upon motion duby mrade snd
seconded, wlfourmed w P08 wom ;

/ | e ﬁ,w
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FELIPE LYCOZON
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SUBJECT TO THE STOCEHOLDERS? APPROVAL
AL THE NEXT STOCKHOLDERS! MEETING)



